Public Document Pack

Rutland County Council

Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk

Ladies and Gentlemen,

A meeting of the STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be
held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Thursday,
8th September, 2022 commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to
attend.

Yours faithfully

Mark Andrews
Chief Executive

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record,
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/

Although social distancing requirements have been lifted there is still limited
available seating for members of the public. If you would like to reserve a seat,
please contact the Governance Team at governance@rutland.gov.uk. The meeting
will also be available for listening live on Zoom using the following link:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81128772571

AGENDA

1) WELCOME AND APOLOGIES RECEIVED

2) RECORD OF MEETING

To confirm the record of the meeting of the Strategic Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on the 7" July 2022.
(Pages 7 - 14)

3) ACTIONS ARISING

To review and update the actions arising from the previous meeting. Actions
relating to the scrutiny groups/panels will be picked up in the Groups and
Panels agenda item.

No. Ref. | Action Person
1. 3 Councillor Bool to arrange a meeting with Councillor
the Chief Executive, the Leader and the Bool



mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81128772571

Strategic Director of Places to discuss the
best way for Highways and Transport
particularly speeding to be scrutinised.

SEND group (Councillors Ainsley, Baines,
Begy, Browne, Payne and Webb) to meet
before the 15th July and Councillor Webb to
confirm if Councillor Begy would continue to
be part of the group.

Councillor
Webb

Councillor Waller to speak with the Cabinet
member regarding what the Customer
Experience Task and Finish Group could do
and by when and Councillor Brown to
contact Councillor Begy to confirm that he
would still lead this Task and Finish Group.

Councillors
Waller and
G Brown

Councillors Waller and Webb to discuss
with portfolio holders the following items for
possible inclusion on to the Committee’s
Work Plan, ready for final approval at the
next meeting: Devolution; Economic
Development Strategy and UK Prosperity
Fund.

Councillors
Waller and
Webb

Culture review report to be circulated to
members for their information.

Jane Narey

Councillors G Brown, Fox and Waller to
meet with the Strategic Director of Places,
Councillor Oxley, Portfolio Holder for
Communities, Environment and Climate
Change and Councillor Payne, Portfolio
Holder for Finance, Governance and
Performance, Change and Transformation
to produce a draft scoping document
detailing what the Scrutiny Committee could
do to assist as part of the Asset Review.

Councillor G
Brown

10

Councillor Waller to notify the non-executive
members that the scope of the
Homelessness Evidence Panel had been
approved and seek volunteers to assist the
panel.

Councillor
Waller

11

Committee Members to review the LLR
CCG performance data and report to the
next meeting any specific areas they would
like the Committee to scrutinise

All




4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any
personal or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from Members of
the Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rules 25 and 159.

The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes. Petitions, declarations
and questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.
Questions may also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the
Committee Administrator 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.

The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the
total time of 30 minutes. Any petitions, deputations and questions that have
been submitted with prior formal notice will take precedence over guestions
submitted at short notice. Any questions that are not considered within the
time limit shall receive a written response after the meeting and be the subject
of a report to the next meeting.

QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS

To consider any questions with notice from Members received in accordance
with the provisions of Procedure Rule No 161 and 162.

NOTICES OF MOTION FROM MEMBERS

To consider any Notices of Motion from Members submitted in accordance
with the provisions of Procedure Rule No 163.

CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE IN
RELATION TO THE CALL-IN OF A DECISION

To consider any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to
call in of a decision in accordance with Procedure Rule 149.

ACCESS TO NHS DENTAL SERVICES WITHIN RUTLAND

To receive Report No. 145/2022 from Rose Lynch, Pharmacy, Optometry,
Dental Services — Midlands (East), NHS England — Midlands.
(Pages 15 - 58)


https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19018/Part%204%20-%20Rules%20of%20Procedure%20May%202022.pdf
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19018/Part%204%20-%20Rules%20of%20Procedure%20May%202022.pdf
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19018/Part%204%20-%20Rules%20of%20Procedure%20May%202022.pdf
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19018/Part%204%20-%20Rules%20of%20Procedure%20May%202022.pdf

10)

11)

12)

b)

d)

f)

9)

ELECTION OF A NEW VICE CHAIR

To appoint a new Vice Chair of the Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Committee
for the municipal year 2022-2023.

LLR JOINT HEALTH AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To confirm the new substitute representative at the Leicester, Leicestershire &
Rutland Joint Health Scrutiny Committee.

GROUP AND PANEL UPDATES

CULTURE / ASSET REVIEW

To receive an update from Councillor J Fox and the scoping document
detailing the scrutiny museum review.
(Pages 59 - 64)

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE TASK AND FINISH GROUP
To receive an update from Councillor Begy

HIGHWAYS AND SPEEDING

e Group to be led by Councillor K Bool

e Work to commence in October/November 2022

e Councillor Bool to meet with the Strategic Director of Places and the
Portfolio Holders (Councillors Oxley and Powell) to discuss what work
scrutiny can undertake.

e Work to be carried out in conjunction with the Parish Councils

HOMELESSNESS EVIDENCE PANEL
To receive an update from Councillor G Waller

PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICE PROPOSALS

To receive a briefing from Councillor G Waller and the scoping document
detailing the scrutiny review and the proposed timescale
(Pages 65 - 70)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY, DEVOLUTION & LEVELLING
up

To receive a briefing from Councillor G Waller and the scoping document
detailing the scrutiny review and the proposed timescale
(Pages 71 - 76)

SEND GROUP
To receive an update from Councillor P Ainsley including the notes from the




scoping meeting held on the 15" July 2022 with Dawn Godfrey, Strategic
Director for Children and Families.
(Pages 77 - 78)

13) SOSC IMPROVEMENT PLAN

To review/update the SOSC Improvement Plan following the Scrutiny
Workshop run by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) on the 21%
July 2022.

(Pages 79 - 98)

14) PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE

To receive an update from Councillor David Wilby, Portfolio Holder for
Education and Children’s Services.

15) REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN AND ANNUAL WORK PLAN

To consider the current Forward Plan and identify any relevant items for
inclusion in the Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Work Plan
or to request further information.

The Forward Plan is available on the website at:
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0
(Pages 99 - 104)

16) ANY URGENT BUSINESS

To receive any items of urgent business, which have been previously notified
to the person presiding.

17) DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 13" October 2022 at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Catmose,
Oakham, Rutland LE15 6HP

---000---

TO: ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Name

1. | Councillor G Waller (Chair)
2. | Councillor P Ainsley

3. | Councillor E Baines



https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0

Councillor N Begy

Councillor K Bool

Councillor A Brown

Councillor S Lambert

Councillor L Toseland

© N g~

Councillor R Wilson

STATUTORY CO-OPTED MEMBERS — EDUCATION REPRESENTATIVE:

Name

Title

10.

Peter French

Diocesan Deputy Director of Education,
Dioceses of Peterborough

11. | Andreas Menzies Roman Catholic Diocese
12. | Sian Armstrong Parent Governor
13. | Sarah Stickland Parent Governor

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Name Title

14. | Councillor L Stephenson | Leader and Portfolio Holder for Policy,
Strategy, Partnerships and Economy

15. | Councillor R Powell Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for
Planning, Highways and Transport

16. | Councillor S Harvey Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and
Adult Care

17. | Councillor M Oxley Portfolio Holder for Communities, Environment
and Climate Change

18. | Councillor K Payne Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance and
Performance, Change and Transformation

19. | Councillor D Wilby Portfolio Holder for Education and Children’s
Services

OFFICERS:

Name Title

20. | Mark Andrews Chief Executive

21. | Saverio Della Rocca Strategic Director Resources S151 Officer

22. | Dawn Godfrey Strategic Director of Children and Families

23. | John Morley Strategic Director of Adults and Health

24. | Penny Sharp Strategic Director of Places

25. | Angela Wakefield Director of Legal and Governance

26. | Jane Narey (Clerk) Scrutiny Officer

FOR INFORMATION:

Name Title

27. | Angela Hillery Chief Executive, Leicestershire Partnership
NHS Trust

28. | Peter Cantley Diocesan Director of Education, Diocese of
Peterborough




Agenda Item 2

Rutland County Council

Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk

Minutes of the MEETING of the STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
on Thursday, 7th July, 2022 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor G Waller (Chair)
Councillor E Baines
Councillor P Browne
Councillor J Fox
Councillor L Toseland
Councillor S Webb (Vice Chair)

APOLOGIES Councillor P Ainsley
Councillor N Begy
Councillor K Bool
Councillor S Lambert
Councillor R Wilson
Peter French, Statutory Co-Opted Member
Sarah Stickland, Statutory Co-Opted Member

PORTFOLIO Councillor S Harvey Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing
HOLDERS and Adult Care
PRESENT Councillor M Oxley Portfolio Holder for Communities,
Environment and Climate Change
OFFICERS Penny Sharp Strategic Director of Places
PRESENT Angela Wakefield Director of Legal and Governance
Vivienne Robbins Consultant in Public Health
Jane Narey (Clerk) Scrutiny Officer
ATTENDED Councillor G Brown

Councillor R Payne

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES RECEIVED

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies were received from
Councillor P Ainsley, Councillor N Begy, Councillor K Bool, Councillor S Lambert,
Peter French and Sarah Stickland. Councillors Fox and Browne attended the meeting
as the representatives for Councillors Begy and Bool respectively.

Councillors G Brown and Payne attended the meeting as non-voting members.


mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk

RECORD OF MEETING

The Chair requested that item 9e in the minutes of the meeting held on the 9" June
2022 be amended to included Councillor E Baines as part of the SEND group.

The remaining minutes of the meeting held on the 9" June 2022 were approved as an
accurate record.

ACTIONS ARISING
The actions from the previous meeting were discussed and updated accordingly.

Action 1

Councillors Toseland, Lambert and Waller to establish a Homelessness Evidence
Panel to gather evidence regarding the issue of homelessness in the county and
report their findings to the SOSC.

Item on the agenda for discussion.

Action 2

In September 2022, Councillor Begy to lead/establish an Evidence Panel to gather
information about the implementation of the Council’s Minerals Authority Contract and
report back to the SOSC.

Item deferred until January 2023 and added to the Work Plan.

Action 3
Chief Executive and the Leader to discuss highways and transport — particularly the
issue of speeding - with the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Highways and Transport and
the Portfolio Holder for Communities, Environment and Climate Change to help inform
the committee on the best method of scrutinising this important issue.
The Chair had requested Councillor Bool to lead on this item as he had experience of
a variety of different speeding concerns and so was well placed to view the problem
Rutland wide. It was agreed that Councillor Bool would arrange a meeting with the
Chief Executive, the Leader and the Strategic Director of Places to discuss the best
way for this issue to be scrutinised.
ACTION: Councillor Bool

Action 4
Councillors Ainsley, Baines, Begy, Webb and Browne to consider how to follow up on
the SEND work that was started by the last Children and Young People's Scrutiny
Committee; especially in light of the Government's support via the Delivering Better
Value programme.
The Chair reported that she had asked Councillor Payne to be part of the SEND group
and she confirmed that Councillor Webb would lead on the SEND item. A meeting
had been arranged with Dawn Godfrey on the 15" July to discuss how best to
continue scrutiny’s work on this subject matter. It was agreed that the group
(Councillors Ainsley, Baines, Begy, Browne, Payne and Webb) should meet before the
15™" July and that Councillor Webb would confirm if Councillor Begy could continue to
be part of the group.

ACTION: Councillor Webb
Action 5
Councillor Waller to contact the non-executive councillors about the creation of a
‘Customer Experience’ Task and Finish Group to learn more about what Rutland
residents experience when accessing Council services.



Councillor Waller confirmed that she had contacted the non-executive councillors.
Councillor Toseland confirmed that she would like to be involved in this Task and
Finish Group. It was agreed that Councillor Waller would speak with the Cabinet
member regarding what the Task and Finish Group could do and by when and that
Councillor Brown would contact Councillor Begy to confirm that he could still lead this
Task and Finish Group.
ACTION: Councillors Waller and G Brown
Action 6
Councillors Waller and Webb to discuss with portfolio holders the following items for
possible inclusion on to the Committee’s Work Plan, ready for final approval at the
next meeting: Devolution; Economic Development Strategy and UK Prosperity Fund.
Councillors Waller and Webb confirmed that the were due to meet and would update
at the next meeting.
ACTION: Councillors Waller and Webb
Action 7
The Leader to discuss with the Portfolio Holder for Communities, Environment and
Climate Change the possibility of an informal briefing session for all Councillors about
the current status of the Culture Review and identify what the SOSC could do to assist
the Council as part of the review process.
The Strategic Director of Places confirmed that a report had previously been
developed by consultants on upgrading the existing museum facility. There had also
been discussions with the previous portfolio holder with Scrutiny about the scope of a
culture review. Both of these were put on hold due to the Covid pandemic. It was
agreed that the culture review report would be circulated to members for their
information.
ACTION: Jane Narey
It was agreed that Councillors G Brown, Fox and Waller would meet with the Strategic
Director of Places, Councillor Oxley, Portfolio Holder for Communities, Environment
and Climate Change and Councillor Payne, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance
and Performance, Change and Transformation to produce a draft scoping document
detailing what the Scrutiny Committee could do to assist as part of the Asset Review.
ACTION: Councillor G Brown

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

There were no petitions, deputations or questions.
QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS

There were no questions with notice member members.
NOTICES OF MOTION FROM MEMBERS

There were no notices of motion from members

CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE IN
RELATION TO THE CALL-IN OF A DECISION

There were no call-ins



10

DENTAL SERVICES UPDATE

A copy of the report presented to the Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee
on the 27" June 2022 about the access to NHS Dental Services was received. During
the discussion, the following points were noted:

Rose Lynch, Senior Commissioning Manager — Primary Care Dental Services
(East), and her team would attend the next meeting of the Committee on the 8%
September 2022 to answer members questions.

---000---
Vivienne Robbins joined the meeting at 7.21 pm
---000---

The Portfolio Holder confirmed that all dental patients, including NHS dental
patients, should be either triaged or referred by a dental practitioner in
emergencies. Councillor Harvey, Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Adult
Care requested that details of cases where this had not occurred should be sent to
her following consent from the member of public concerned.

The Committee had the authority to call-in and question any health provider
regarding the level and quality of service and notify the Secretary of State if
required.

It was noted that the Rutland MP had already written to the Secretary of State
regarding the provision of dental health services in Rutland.

Committee members identified the following specific areas for scrutinising:

o Details of the Rutland dentists that were contracted to accept NHS patients
should be distributed.

Data should be more Rutland specific.

What were the short-term solutions to the issues?

What were the long-term solution to the issues?

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: was this a barrier for the provision of
services?

What was being done to assist with the recruitment of dentists?

Was geography a barrier?

o How were ‘deprived areas’ defined?

o O O O

o O

---000---
Vivienne Robbins left the meeting at 7.51 pm
---000---

HOMELESSNESS EVIDENCE PANEL: SCOPE

Councillor Waller distributed to attendees a scoping document for the work of the
Homelessness Evidence Panel. During the discussion, the following points were
noted:

Care leavers and the armed forces community needed to be included within the
scope of the panel.

The Local Housing Allowance (LHA) should be included within the evidence
gathering.

10



11

12

13

e Councillor Waller would notify the non-executive members that the scope of the
panel had been approved and seek volunteers to assist the panel.
ACTION: Councillor Waller
RESOLVED
That the Committee:

a) APPROVED the scoping document for the Homelessness Evidence Panel (copy
attached).

LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE & RUTLAND CLINICAL COMMISSIONING
GROUPS' PERFORMANCE DATA

Report No. 128/2022 was received from Councillor S Harvey, Portfolio Holder for
Health, Wellbeing and Adult Care. During the discussion, the following points were
noted:

e Committee Members were requested to review the data and report to the next
meeting any specific areas they would like the Committee to scrutinise.
ACTION: All
RESOLVED
That the Committee:

a) NOTED the LLR CCG’s Performance Data Report.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

e The Committee agreed to exclude the public and press but allow Councillors
Brown, Payne and Harvey to remain within the meeting.

---000---
The Chair closed the public meeting at 7.57 pm
---000---

WASTE AND STREET CLEANSING

Report No. 129/2022 was received from Councillor Oxley, Portfolio Holder for
Communities, Environment and Climate Change. During the discussion, the following
points were noted:

e The contracts would expire on the 315t March 2024 and could not be extended.

e The length of the new contracts was set out in the pre-procurement business case.

e It was beneficial to have long term contracts due to high costs for the initial outlay
of equipment.

e The contracts were bound by the new Environment Act including the requirement
to provide a weekly food waste collection service.

e The education of the public would be critical to the success of the programme.
The Council had identified the need to provide budget for communications
campaigns in the run up and after the start of the new contract and services. The
new suppliers would be expected to work with the Council to promote waste
reduction and recycling.

e Educational material would be available in a range of formats as all Council
contracts contained an equitable clause as standard.

11



14

15

e Members agreed that the sticky labels previously distributed by the Council
detailing what could/could not be recycled were informative and should be
produced again for the new contracts.

e The new Council website would signpost members of the public to other waste
recycling schemes e.g. Tesco for soft plastics, Currys for electrical items.

e The assisted bin collection would continue as part of the Council’s service.

e Flexibility had been built into the new contracts to include any future recycling
proposals.

e Members agreed that the black bins should reduce in size to 140L with the
collection remaining fortnightly. A larger bin and monthly collection were deemed
undesirable due to the items of waste e.g. nappies.

RESOLVED
That the Committee:

a) REVIEWED and commented on the re-procurement of the integrated Waste and
Streetscene services (including waste and recycling collection and disposal)
contract as detailed in the Pre-Procurement Business Case.

b) REVIEWED and commented on the Municipal Waste Management and
Streetscene Strategy 2022-2035.

c) RECOMMENDED that Cabinet ensured that the Strategic Overview and Scrutiny
Committee continued to consider initial work on waste infrastructure provision in a
timely manner.

d) RECOMMENDED that Cabinet established a log of customer questions relating to
what to put in each bin to inform RCC’s waste collection web page and future
notices to residents.

---000---
The Chair closed the private meeting at 8.48 pm
---000---

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' UPDATE

There was no Portfolio Holder update. The Chair requested that Committee Members
notify her of who, when and on what they would like an update.

---000---
Councillors Harvey and Oxley left the meeting at 8.50 pm
---000---

REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN AND ANNUAL WORK PLAN

The Forward Plan and Annual Work Plan were discussed. During the discussion, the
following points were noted:

e Public Transport Service Proposals had been added to the Work Plan for
discussion at the meeting on the 8" September. This was an urgent item following
the Cabinet discussion on the 12t July about the Centrebus service.

e Councillors Waller and Webb were meeting with the Strategic Director of Places
and the Governance Manager on the 28" July to discuss how the Scrutiny
Committee could assist.

e Councillor G Brown to lead the Parish Council Re-Charging matter when timeline
confirmed.

12



16 ANY URGENT BUSINESS

17

There was no urgent business.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 8" September 2022 at 7.00 p.m.

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS
No. | Ref. | Action Person
1. 3 Councillor Bool to arrange a meeting with the | Councillor Bool

Chief Executive, the Leader and the Strategic
Director of Places to discuss the best way for
Highways and Transport particularly speeding to
be scrutinised.

the Strategic Director of Places, Councillor Oxley,
Portfolio Holder for Communities, Environment
and Climate Change and Councillor Payne,
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance and
Performance, Change and Transformation to
produce a draft scoping document detailing what
the Scrutiny Committee could do to assist as part
of the Asset Review.

2, 3 SEND group (Councillors Ainsley, Baines, Begy, Councillor
Browne, Payne and Webb) to meet before the Webb
15th July and Councillor Webb to confirm if
Councillor Begy would continue to be part of the
group.

3. 3 Councillor Waller to speak with the Cabinet Councillors
member regarding what the Customer Experience Waller and
Task and Finish Group could do and by when and G Brown
Councillor Brown to contact Councillor Begy to
confirm that he would still lead this Task and
Finish Group.

4. 3 Councillors Waller and Webb to discuss with Councillors
portfolio holders the following items for possible Waller and
inclusion on to the Committee’s Work Plan, ready Webb
for final approval at the next meeting: Devolution;

Economic Development Strategy and UK
Prosperity Fund.

5. 3 Culture review report to be circulated to members Jane Narey
for their information.

6. 3 Councillors G Brown, Fox and Waller to meet with Councillor G

Brown

13




10 | Councillor Waller to notify the non-executive Councillor
members that the scope of the Homelessness Waller
Evidence Panel had been approved and seek
volunteers to assist the panel.

11 | Committee Members to review the LLR CCG All

performance data and report to the next meeting
any specific areas they would like the Committee
to scrutinise

---000---
Chair closed the meeting at 8.55 pm.
---000---

14




Agenda ltem 9

Report No: 145/2022
PUBLIC REPORT

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

8 September 2022

ACCESS TO NHS DENTAL SERVICES WITHIN RUTLAND

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Care

Strategic Aim: | All

Exempt Information No
Cabinet Member(s) Cllr S Harvey, Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing
Responsible: and Adult Care

Contact Officer(s): | Rose Lynch, Pharmacy, Optometry, | Telephone: 07568 431887

Dental Services - Midlands (East) Email:
NHS England — Midlands rose-marie.lynch@nhs.net

Ward Councillors | All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

That the Committee:

Notes that dental practitioners are independent contractors to the NHS. Many dental
practices operate a mixed private/NHS model of care and all patients are free to
choose what option of dental care they would prefer to receive.

Notes that the commissioning responsibility for all NHS dental services will transfer
from NHSE to the Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland (LLR) Integrated Care Board on
the 1S April 2023 and the statutory responsibility for oral health improvement will
remain with the local authority public health team.

11

12

1.3

14

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Rutland Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Committee (SOSC) has requested a
report on access to NHS Dental Services, with particular focus on provision and
recovery plans as services emerge from the COVID-19 pandemic within Rutland.

This report also includes oral health improvement initiatives and activities, which is
the statutory responsibility of the Local Authority’s Public Health team.

For the Rutland SOSC to note that NHS England (NHSE) is currently responsible
for the commissioning of all NHS dental services and that this responsibility will be
delegated to the LLR Integrated Care Board (ICB) on the 1stApril 2023.

The report has been developed by:

¢ NHSE Commissioning Team Senior Manager
¢ NHSE Consultant in Dental Public Health

e Local Authority Public Health colleagues

15


file://rutland.gov.uk/cfs1/shared/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
mailto:rose-marie.lynch@nhs.net

15

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

Representatives from NHSE will be present at the Rutland SOSC meeting. In
addition, representation from LLR ICB and Consultant in Public Health have also
been invited to attend the meeting.

BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS

NHSE is currently responsible for commissioning all NHS dental services including
those available on the high street (primary care dental services), specialist dental
services in primary care e.g. Intermediate Minor Oral Surgery (IMOS) and
Community Dental Services (CDS) as well as from Hospital Trusts and NHS dental
services in secure settings. Private dental services are not within the scope of
responsibility for NHSE.

Although NHSE is responsible for commissioning all NHS general dental services,
there are certain limitations of the current national contract. However, flexible
commissioning can be utilised where a percentage of the existing contract value is
substituted (up to 10%) to target local needs or meet local commissioning
challenges. This approach requires a balance to ensure dental access is
maintained.

The current NHS dental contract for primary and community dental care was
introduced in 2006. Prior to that, dentists could choose to set up a dental practice
anywhere in the country. They could also see and treat as many patients as possible
who attended, and they claimed for each element of the dental treatment that was
carried out under the old ‘Items of Service’ contracting arrangements, e.g. if a patient
had two fillings, the dentist was paid twice the unit cost of a filling etc. However, the
old dental contract did not work for various reasons, therefore, there was a reference
period in 2005 which determined how many Units of Dental Activity (UDAS) each
NHS dental practice that existed at that time would be allocated per annum and it
was no longer possible for dentists to set themselves up as an NHS provider on an
ad hoc basis. Any new NHS dental service had to be specifically commissioned by
the then Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) within their capped financial envelope.

In effect, the former PCTs, and subsequently NHSE, ‘inherited’ those practices that
were already in existence and that wished to continue to provide NHS dentistry
under the new contracting arrangements. Sadly, a number of dental practices opted
out of the NHS to become fully private at this time as they did not feel that the new
UDA system would adequately recompense them for their work. This had a
significant impact on the availability of NHS dentistry. The PCT had no control over
where these ‘inherited’ dental practices were situated or over the number of UDAs
commissioned in each geographical area. Hence, capacity did not (and in some
areas continues to not) necessarily meet demand. Although there have been
significant population changes in subsequent years, the number of UDAs
commissioned (which is set contractually and cannot be amended without the
agreement of both parties) has not always increased/decreased accordingly in order
to meet the changing demand and need.

Unlike General Medical Practice (GMP), there is no system of patient registration
with a dental practice and patients are free to choose to attend any dental practice,
regardless of where they live. Therefore, residents in Rutland could choose to
access NHS dentistry in any locality of their choice for whatever reason e.g. some
people prefer to attend a dental practice near to their place of work, rather than

16



2.6

2.7

31
3.1.1

3.1.2

313

3.14

3.14

where they live.

Dental practices are responsible for patients who are undergoing dental treatment
under their care and once complete (apart from repairs and replacements), the
practice has no ongoing responsibility. However, people often associate themselves
with a specific dental practice. Many dental practices may refer to having a patient
list or taking on new patients, however there is no registration in the same way as
for GMP practices and patients are theoretically free to attend any dental practice
that has capacity to accept them.

Prior to the pandemic, patients would often make their ‘dental check-up
appointments’ at their ‘usual or regular dental practice.” During the pandemic,
contractual responsibilities changed, and practices were required to prioritise:

e urgent dental care
¢ vulnerable patients (including children)
e those at higher risk of oral health issues

Unfortunately, many practices have reported continued capacity issues due to
difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff.

NHS DENTAL SERVICES: RUTLAND

NHS General Dental and Orthodontic Services

There are 6 NHS dental practices within Rutland as follows:

e 4in Oakham
e 2 in Uppingham

The arrangement for orthodontics is as follows:

e one of the NHS dental practices in Uppingham also provides NHS orthodontic
services

e one specialist NHS Orthodontic practice in Oakham

e one NHS Orthodontic Pathway contract in Oakham

The purpose of the NHS Orthodontic Pathway is to reduce waiting times in
secondary (hospital) care by ensuring that only those patients with extremely
complex orthodontic needs are placed on the hospital waiting list, with all other
complex cases being diverted to the pathway contracts. There are 6 other NHS
Orthodontic Pathway contracts located within Leicester City and Leicestershire
which is in the geographical area of LLR. Referrals are accepted from all NHS
General Dental Practices across Leicester City, Leicester County and Rutland.
NHS General Dental and Orthodontic Services near the Rutland borders

NHS General Dental and Orthodontic Services

There are 19 NHS dental practices near the Rutland borders as follows:

e 4 in Melton Mowbray (1 ortho)

17



3.1.5

3.2

321

3.2.2

3.2.3

324

e 6 in Market Harborough (1 pathway contract)
e 3in Stamford
e 6 in Corby (1 mixed)

The arrangement for NHS Orthodontics near the Rutland border is as follows:

e One specialist NHS Orthodontic practice in Melton Mowbray

e One NHS Orthodontic Pathway contract in Market Harborough

e One of the NHS dental practices in Corby also provides NHS orthodontic
services

Extended hours, urgent dental care and out of hours

Extended or out of hours NHS dental care is provided by one 8-8 NHS dental service
within Oakham, Rutland. This contract provides both routine and urgent NHS dental
care from 8am to 8pm every single day of the year (365 days).

Out of hours NHS dental services only provide urgent dental care. Urgent dental
care is defined into three categories as shown in Table 1 along with best practice
access timelines for patients to receive self-help or face to face care.

Table 1: Timelines in accordance to dental need

Triage Category Time Scale

Routine Dental Problems| Self-help advice provided and access to an appropriate
service within 7 days, if required.

Patient advised to call back if their condition

Urgent Dental Conditions| Self-help advice provided and patient treated within 24
hours.

Patient advised to call back if their condition

Dental Emergencies Contact provided with a clinician within 60 minutes and
subsequent treatment within a timescale that is
appropriate to the severity of the condition.

If a person has a regular dental practice and requires urgent NHS dental care:

e During surgery hours, they should contact their dental practice directly.

e Out of hours, they should check their dental practice’s answering machine for
information on how to access urgent dental care. Most people are signposted to
contact NHS 111 (interpreters are available). For deaf people, there is also the
NHS 111 BSL Service (alternatively, they can also call 18001 111 using text
relay). There is also an online option for contacting NHS 111 that will often be
quicker and easier than using the telephone.

If a person does not have a regular NHS dental practice and requires urgent dental
care, they can contact:

e any NHS dental practice during surgery hours to seek an urgent dental
appointment and this would be dependent on the capacity available at each
dental practice on any given day. They can use the Find a Dentist facility on the
NHS website

18


https://111.nhs.uk/
https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/find-a-Dentist

3.25

3.2.6

3.3

331

3.3.2

e NHS 111, either online or on the phone (interpreters are available). For deaf
people, there is also the NHS 111 BSL Service (alternatively, they can also call
18001 111 using text relay)

e Healthwatch Rutland or Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire

e NHS England’s Customer Contact Centre on 0300 311 2233

Patients with dental pain should not contact their GP or attend A&E as this could
add further delays in gaining appropriate dental treatment as both GP and A&E
services will be redirecting such patients to a dental service.

People who require urgent out-of-hours NHS dental care can attend any service in
any locality. For Rutland residents, the local site is Oakham. At times of peak
demand, patients may have to travel further for treatment depending on capacity
across the system.

Community (Special Care) Dental Service

The LLR Community (Special Care) Dental Service provides dental treatment to
patients whose oral care needs cannot be met through NHS primary dental care due
to their complex medical, physical, or behavioural needs. The service uses
behavioural management techniques and follows sedation and general anaesthesia
(GA) pathways. Dentists and/or health care professionals can refer into the service.
There is one dental provider Community Dental Services — CIC (CDS-CIC) treating
children and adults from 5 clinics across LLR:

e 2 clinics within Leicester: Westcotes and Merlyn Vaz
e 3 clinics within Leicestershire: Hinckley, Loughborough, and Melton Mowbray
e There are no clinics within Rutland

Community (Special Care) Dental Services near the Rutland borders are as follows:

e Lincolnshire (service provided by CDS-CIC) — no clinics near the Rutland border,
however clinics within Lincolnshire are Gainsborough, North Hykeham,
Grantham, Louth, Skegness, Boston and Spalding.

e Northamptonshire (service provided by Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust (NHFT)) — Corby. Other clinics within Northamptonshire
include:

Northampton — 1 clinic
Daventry — 1 clinic
Wellingborough — 1 clinic
Brackley — 1 clinic

O 00O

e Itis to note that the current Community (Special Care) Dental Service contracts
are commissioned within their system/ICB area and generally do not accept
cross border flows.

The GA pathway for children and special care adults is managed between CDS-CIC
and the University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL) which is commissioned on a system
area footprint. This means that children and adults’ resident in Rutland with special
care needs requiring dental treatment under general anaesthesia will need to attend
a UHL facility.

19


https://111.nhs.uk/
https://signvideo.co.uk/nhs111/

3.3.3

3.4

34.1

34.2

3.4.3

35

351

3.6

3.6.1

41

CDS-CIC are also commissioned to provide NHS dental care and treatment for
those who are unable to leave their own home or care home. Some limited dental
care can be provided in a person’s own setting such as a basic check-up or simple
extraction, but patients may still need to travel into a dental surgery (as this is the
safest place) to receive more complex dental treatment. If such patients require a
dental appointment, they or their relative/carer can contact the local domiciliary
provider via NHS 111.

Intermediate Minor Oral Surgery (IMOS) Service

The IMOS service is a specialist referral service providing complex dental
extractions for LLR patients over the age of 16 years who meet the clinical criteria.
There are 10 providers across LLR:

e 6in Leicester
e 4in Leicestershire
e There are no providers within Rutland

It is to note that the current IMOS service contracts are commissioned within their
system/ICB area and generally does not accept cross border flows, however the
new IMOS service will enable cross border flows.

A map of the location of local dental practices (including orthodontics) across
Rutland is in Appendix 1. The numbers on the maps reflect the number of dental
practices as the scale does not permit them to be displayed individually. The maps
are also shaded to demonstrate accessibility of dental services and travel times by
public transport.

Hospital Dental Care

Secondary care dental services e.g. Orthodontics, Oral Surgery, Oral Medicine,
Maxillofacial are commissioned from UHL to deliver complex dental (often multi-
disciplinary) treatment to patients who meet the clinical criteria in line with NHSE
Commissioning Guides. Activity and contract values are agreed annually with acute
trusts.

Prison Dental Care

HM Prison Stocken is a Category C men's prison located in the parish of Stretton,
in Rutland. NHSE commission Time for Teeth to provide NHS dental care for these
residents and contracts are managed by the Health and Justice Team.

NHS DENTAL CHARGES

NHS dental care is free for all children under 18 years old or under 19 years of
age and in full-time education. For everyone else, dentistry is one of the few NHS
services where they have to pay a contribution towards the cost of NHS care. Any
treatment that a dentist believes is clinically necessary to achieve and maintain
good oral health should be available on the NHS. The current charges are:

e Emergency dental treatment — £23.80 This covers emergency dental care

20


https://www.nhs.uk/using-the-nhs/help-with-health-costs/when-you-need-to-pay-towards-nhs-care/

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.3

5.4

such as pain relief or a temporary filling.

e Band 1 course of treatment — £23.80 This covers an examination, diagnosis
(including X-rays), advice on how to prevent future problems, a scale and polish
if clinically needed and preventative care such as the application of fluoride
varnish or fissure sealant if appropriate.

e Band 2 course of treatment — £65.20 This covers everything listed in Band 1
above, plus any further treatment such as fillings, root canal work or removal of
teeth but not more complex items covered by Band 3.

e Band 3 course of treatment — £282.80 This covers everything listed in Bands
1 and 2 above, plus crowns, dentures, bridges and other laboratory work.

More information is available here. All NHS dental practices have access to posters
and leaflets that should be displayed prominently.

Exemption from NHS charges is when patients do not have to pay NHS dental
charges for instance when receiving certain benefits, pregnant or have given birth
in the 12 months before dental treatment started. If this is the case, then proof of
entitlement would need to be presented at the NHS dental practice. It is the patient’s
responsibility to check whether they are entitled to claim for free dental treatment or
prescription.

Financial support is also available for people who are not exempted from paying
NHS dental charges but on a low income and struggle with the costs. This is
provided through the NHS Low Income Scheme by completing and submitting the
form.

PRIVATE DENTISTRY

Private dental services are not within the scope of responsibility for NHSE.
Therefore, NHSE are unable to provide any information on activity uptake within the
private dentistry sector for residents in Rutland.

It should be noted that dental practitioners are independent contractors to the NHS.
Many dental practices operate a mixed private/NHS model of care and all patients
are free to choose what option of dental care they would prefer to receive.

Due to the NHS dental access concerns raised within Rutland, Local Authority
Public Health colleagues will be undertaking a survey with Rutland residents to
understand access challenges to dentistry for both NHS and private as part of the
Oral Health Needs Assessment for Rutland.

It is acknowledged that some patients who have previously accessed dental care
privately may now be seeking NHS dental care due to financial problems related to
the pandemic. This is putting additional pressure on NHS services at a time when
capacity is constrained. Although these patients are eligible for NHS dental care,
they may have difficulty in finding an NHS dental practice with capacity to take them
on.

There have been anecdotal reports of some practices’ reluctance across the
Midlands region in offering NHS appointments (particularly routine) and are offering
the option to be seen earlier as a private patient instead. NHSE does not support
any stances of pressurising patients into private dental care. NHSE will investigate

21


https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/x-ray/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/fluoride/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/fluoride/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/root-canal-treatment/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/dentures/
https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/dentists/dental-costs/understanding-nhs-dental-charges/
https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/2020-12/CCS155_CCS1020381890-003_Dental_Care_Poster_Nov_2020.pdf
https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-health-costs/nhs-low-income-scheme-lis/
https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-health-costs/nhs-low-income-scheme-lis/
https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-health-costs/nhs-low-income-scheme-lis/
https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-low-income-scheme

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

any report of this nature but will need detailed information so that this can be raised
with the practice for a response. Any such concerns can be raised via a complaint
about any specific practice/s by contacting the NHS England Customer Contact
Centre on 0300 311 22 33 or https://www.england.nhs.uk/contact-us/.

IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on dental services
and the availability of NHS dental care; the long-term impact on oral health is as yet
unknown but it is a cause for concern. All routine dental services in England were
required to cease operating when the UK went into lockdown on 23 March 2020. A
network of Urgent Dental Care centres (UDCs) was immediately established across
the Midlands in early April 2020 to allow those requiring urgent dental treatment to
be seen. These UDCs are currently still operational however referrals are of a very
low volume as routine dental practices have now reopened. The UDCs remain on
standby in case of future uncontrolled issues that may affect delivery of NHS dental
services (such as staff shortages due to sickness — for example as a consequence
of a COVID- 19 outbreak).

From 8 June 2020, dental practices were allowed to re-open however additional
infection prevention and control measures were required (including social
distancing) for patients and staff. A particular constraint was the introduction of the
so-called ‘fallow time’ — a period of time for which the surgery must be left empty
following any aerosol-generating procedure (AGP). An AGP is one that involves the
use of high- speed drills or instrument which would include dental fillings or root
canal treatment. This has had a marked impact on the throughput of patients and
the number of appointments that could be offered. For a large part of 2020, many
practices were only able to provide about 20% of the usual number of face-to-face
appointments and relied instead on providing remote triage of assessment, advice
and antibiotics (where indicated). The situation improved in early 2021, with
reductions in fallow time requirements and since then, practices have been required
to deliver increasing levels of dental activity.

NHS dental practices are currently required to offer dental services to patients
throughout their contracted normal surgery hours (some practices are offering
extended opening hours to better utilise their staff and surgery capacity). They are
also required to have reasonable staffing levels for NHS dental services to be in
place. Increases in capacity have been gained in line with subsequent changes to
national protocols for infection prevention and control such as reducing social
distancing requirements.

All NHS dental practices are required to maximise capacity and also to prioritise
urgent dental care for:

e their regular patients (patients who have recently had a course of treatment
within 2 months)

e patients without a regular dental practice referred via NHS 111

e all vulnerable patients (including children)

Infection prevention and control measures have been regularly reviewed and the

following minimum requirement for the recovery of dental activity has been imposed
on NHS dental contracts:

22


https://www.england.nhs.uk/contact-us/

Q3 2021/22: 65% of contracted activity for general dentistry and 80% of
contracted activity for orthodontics

Q4 2021/22: 75% of contracted activity for general dentistry and 90% of
contracted activity for orthodontics

Q1 2022/23: 95% of contracted activity for general dentistry and 100% of
contracted activity for orthodontics

Q2 2022/23: 100% of contracted activity for general dentistry and orthodontics

6.6 Figure 1 shows the level of NHS dental activity delivered across LLR during the
pandemic against the minimum threshold activity set nationally and against the
Midlands total. It can be seen that there have been some surges of higher levels of
activity for LLR as a whole against the minimum threshold requirements.
Unfortunately, this data is only available at an ICB level and therefore cannot be
reported separately for Rutland. Appendix 2 shows the average pattern of delivery
of NHS dental activity over the course of the pandemic across the Midlands.

Figure 1: LLR Primary Care Dental Activity vs Minimum Thresholds

------- Midlands Total
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
............ Minimum Thresholds

MIDLANDS - Monthly delivery (schedule month) vs contract by ICB
QK1 Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland IC8 — — veo

——— T

6.7 Figure 2 shows the NHS Units of Dental Activity delivered in upper tier local authority
areas during the pandemic (although NHS dental practices are not contractually
associated to them). By September 2021, NHS dental practices in:

e Leicester had recovered 64% of pre-pandemic dental activity

e Leicestershire had recovered 63% of pre-pandemic dental activity
¢ Rutland had recovered 87% of pre-pandemic dental activity

23



6.8

Figure 2: Units of Dental Activity delivered in local authority areas during the
pandemic

250,00
0

200,00

0
150,00
0

100,00

0 30th. June 30th. Sept 31st. Dec 30th.  30th. June 30th. Sept 31st. Dec 30th.  30th. June 30th. Sept
50,00
0
0
2019 2019 2019 March 2020 2020 2020 March 2021 2021
2020 2021
m—— |eicester Leicestershire Rutland

The national minimum requirement for all NHS dental contracts was set at 65% for
Q3 and 75% for Q4 2021/22. Tables 2 and 3 and 3 below show that NHS dental
practices within LLR ICB superseded the minimum threshold requirements
(unfortunately this information is not available at a lower level and therefore it has
not been possible to extract and report data for Rutland).

Table 2: Proportion of Units of Dental Activity delivered in Q3 and Q4 of
2021/22 by NHS General Dental Practices across LLR

Area Period Threshold LLR System
performance

LLR Q3 65% 65.5%

LLR Q4 75% 77.0%

Midlands Q3 65% 66.2%

Midlands Q4 75% 76.9%

Table 3: Number of NHS dental contracts meeting / exceeding national
minimum requirements during Q3 and Q4 of 2021/22 across LLR

Area Period Outcome — number meeting
or exceeding thresholds

LLR Q3 79 out of 135 (58.5%)

LLR Q4 60 out of 135 (44.4%)

Midlands Q3 718 out of 1,181 (60.8%)

Midlands Q4 452 out of 1,181 (38.3%)

24



7.1

7.2

7.3

NHS DENTAL ACCESS

Figure 3 shows the percentage of children (0-17 years) accessing NHS dentistry
during the pandemic for Rutland against Leicester, Leicestershire, the LLR, East
Midlands, Rutland CIPFA neighbours and England averages. The pre-pandemic
rate for children and young people in Rutland was 49%, above the national average
and other comparators (except for Leicestershire). The NHS dental access rate for
children and young people has been rising since 2020 (13%) to 42% in 2022, which
is still below the pre-pandemic level. These trends seem to be in line with
Leicestershire and Leicester rates, and above the national, regional or statistical
neighbour averages.

Figure 3: Proportion of children (0-17 years) accessing NHS dentistry during
the pandemic

The percentage of 0-17 population of Rutland accessing NHS primary care dental
services from 2019 to 2022, compared to national average and other areas

No data
for
January to June 2020

% of population0-17

The National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (NICE) does not support
routine 6- monthly dental check-ups universally for all patients. It recommends that
dentists should take a risk-based approach to setting the frequency of dental check-
ups. The shortest interval between oral health reviews for all patients should be 3
months and the longest interval between oral health reviews for patients younger
than 18 years should be 12 months. Recall intervals of no longer than 12 months
give the opportunity for delivering and reinforcing preventive advice and for raising
awareness of the importance of good oral health. This is particularly important in
young children in order to lay the foundations for life-long dental health. There is
also evidence that the rate of progression of dental decay can be more rapid in
children and adolescents than in older people (see the full guideline). Periodic
developmental assessment of the dentition is also required in children and
adolescents.

Figure 4 demonstrates that the proportion of Rutland children accessing NHS
dentistry within 12 months (as per NICE recommendations) have constantly been
above Leicester, Leicestershire and the England averages, both prior and during
the pandemic. It also shows the impact of the pandemic lockdown of March 2020
on access which can be observed 12 months later (March 2021). As NHS dental

25


https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/cg19/evidence

7.4

services have gradually been recovered and restored, the proportion of children
accessing NHS dentistry are increasing. As of 315t December 2021, the proportion
of children accessing NHS dentistry within 12 months in England was at 75% of that
reported for the 315t December 2019 (pre- pandemic). Recovery of access for
children across LLR has been higher than England at 77% for Leicester, 76% for
Leicestershire and 92% for Rutland.

Figure 4: Proportion of children resident across LLR accessing NHS dentistry
within 12 months

% of LLR children accessing NHS
dentistry

80

70

60
50
40
30
20

10

30th. June30th. Sept 31st. Dec  30th. 30th. June30th. Sept 31st. 30th. 30th. June30th. Sept 31st.

2019 2019 March 2020 2020 2020 March 2021 2021 2021
2020 2021
m— | eiceste Leicestershir Rutland England

Figure 5 shows the percentage of adults accessing NHS dentistry during the
pandemic. The pre-pandemic rate for adults in Rutland was 24%, below the national
and other comparators (except for Leicester). The NHS dental access rate for adults
has been rising since 2020, from 6% to 18% in 2022 which is still below the pre-
pandemic level. These trends seem to be in line with the comparators, however the
Rutland rate is generally lower and recovery seems slower than elsewhere.

26



7.5

7.6

% of population aged 18 and above

Figure 5: Proportion of adults accessing NHS dentistry during the pandemic

The percentage of adult population of Rutland accessing NHS primary care dental
services from 2019 to 2022, compared to national average and other areas

——
“ Mo data
for
15 January to June 2020

0o
Jan-Jun 2019 Jul-Dec 2019 Jan Jun 2020 Jul-Dec 2020 Jan-Jun 2021 Jul-Dec 2021 an-Jun 2022

= oo Eripland e e == Eact Midlands LLE o— i ar == e e Butland CPFA Neighbours e ojoestershing  em)ogoesier

As mentioned earlier, NICE does not support routine 6-monthly dental check-ups
universally for all patients. It recommends that dentists should take a risk -based
approach to setting the frequency of dental check-ups. The shortest interval
between oral health reviews for all patients should be 3 months and the longest
interval between oral health reviews for patients over the age of 18 years should be
24 months. Figure 6 demonstrates that the proportion of Rutland adults accessing
NHS dentistry within 24months (as per NICE recommendations) has typically been
lower than the Leicester, Leicester and England averages, both prior and during the
pandemic. The proportion of those accessing private dentistry through patient
choice is not known.

It is estimated that across the Country there has now been the equivalent of a year’'s
worth of appointments lost in primary care dentistry since the start of the pandemic.
The effects have been similar in community and hospital care due to restricted
capacity from staff absences or re-deployment to support COVID-19 activities.

Figure 6: Proportion of adult’s resident across LLR accessing NHS dentistry
within 24 months

% of LLR adults accessing NHS

dentistrv

60
50
30
20
10

30th. 30th. Sept31st.Dec  30th. 30th. 30th. Sept 31st. 30th. 30th. 30th. Sept 31st.

June 2019 2019 March June 2020 2020 March June 2021 202

2020 AN
=== Leiceste = === Leicestershir Rutlan Englan

27



8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

DENTAL CONTRACT HAND-BACK

Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, one dental contract within Rutland has
been handed back to NHSE. The dental activity from the terminated contract will not
be lost as NHSE are currently working with Public Health colleagues in
Leicestershire County Council to review the dental access data and understand the
impact for Rutland residents. The normal process for terminations is to undertake a
review and recommission the dental activity by dispersal to local dental practices
surrounding the terminated contract. However, due to the size of this terminated
contract, a procurement exercise will need to be undertaken to seek a suitable
Provider to deliver the replacement activity. Whilst the review is being undertaken,
a business case is being submitted to the August 2022 East Midlands Governance
panel to seek approval in undertaking a non-recurrent dispersal of the dental activity
to practices within Rutland and the surrounding area in order to maintain provision
of NHS dental services whilst the service is being procured for the longer term.

As part of the dental activity dispersal process, the NHS dental practice that is
handing back their NHS activity must agree a communication letter for their patients
with NHSE. This letter notifies patients that the dental practice will no longer be
delivering NHS dental care and provides appropriate sign posting on how to
continue gaining access to NHS dental care from elsewhere. This provides
assurance to NHSE that there is no inappropriate/forced signup to private dental
services and enables informed patient choice.

RESTORATION OF NHS DENTAL SERVICES

The NHSE commissioning team continues to work with the local dental profession
in restoring NHS dental services and dealing with the inevitable backlog of patients
that has built up since the COVID-19 pandemic started. In line with national
guidance issued, all NHS dental practices in England are currently working towards
providing routine dental care in the same way as they were prior to the pandemic,
with the expectation of full (100%) delivery of contracted dental activity as of July
2022.

Reduced access to NHS dental care over the course of the pandemic will have
resulted in compromised outcomes for some patients. Due to the duration of the
lockdown and the length of time during which routine face to face activity ceased, a
number of patients who ordinarily would have had a clinical intervention may have
struggled to gain access to NHS dental care. Some who were part way through
dental treatment will undoubtedly have suffered and may have lost teeth they would
not have otherwise - temporary fillings placed pre-lockdown, for example, and only
intended as temporary measures, may have come out causing deterioration in
outcome.

Orthodontic patients who are routinely seen for regular reviews will have missed
appointments, although harm reviews and remote consultations undertaken should
have helped identify any urgent issues. The ongoing backlog and ever-increasing
waiting lists do however mean that there is still a risk of those recall intervals being
extended in order to free up capacity to see new patients. Patient compliance with
the required oral hygiene measures may decrease over time and consequently there
is an increased risk of dental decay developing around the orthodontic appliances if

28



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

treatment is prolonged in this way.

Aside from the effects of reduced dental access, it is possible that the pandemic will
have other long-term impacts on oral and general health due to changes in
nutritional intake — for example, increased consumption of foods with a longer shelf
life (often higher in salt or sugar) coupled with possible increased intake of high-
calorie snacks, takeaway foods and alcohol. Increases in sugar and alcohol intake
could have a detrimental effect on an individual's oral health. Those impacted to the
greatest extent by this are likely to be vulnerable population groups and those living
in the more deprived areas, thus further exacerbating existing health inequalities.

It is important to note that some of the most vulnerable in the population, whose oral
health may have been affected by the pandemic as described above, could also be
at greater risk of contracting COVID-19 and of experiencing worse outcomes due to
risk factors linked to other long term health conditions. NHSE are aware that
vulnerable groups are finding it harder than usual to access NHS dental services,
particularly as no walk-in options are currently available.

It is also acknowledged that children looked after are a vulnerable group and should
be prioritised for dental access. Figure 7 below demonstrates that access for
Children Looked After in Rutland has significantly deteriorated since the pandemic,
although not to the extent observed in Leicester and Leicestershire.

Figure 7: Percentage of Children Looked After for 12 months and dental
attendance

120%

100%

80%
60%
40%
20%

0%

Leicester Leicestershire Rutland East Midlands England

M 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

In recognition of the access difficulties for Children in Care, NHSE, the local dental
profession, public health and safeguarding colleagues have worked together to
support dental access for children moving into care. To assist with the process, an
oral health assessment support sheet has been developed for clinical colleagues
undertaking the Initial Health Assessment and, in acknowledgement of the current
difficulties in accessing NHS dental care, a pathway was developed to enable
children identified with acute dental problems to be referred directly to CDS-CIC (the
local community special care dental service) for a comprehensive dental
examination. NHSE communicated this model and pathway to all Directors of
Children’s Services in the East Midlands. This has meant that no child being taken
into care with an urgent dental need is being disadvantaged as a result of the
challenges related to the pandemic. The pathway was completed in April 2021.

29



9.8

9.9

10

10.1

For children being taken into care who have not been identified with any
symptomatic dental problems, their foster carers are being advised to take them to
the local dentist. Unfortunately, it is currently proving very difficult for foster carers
to find appointments for these vulnerable children. NHSE have therefore reminded
(and continue to do so) NHS dental practices that these vulnerable children are a
priority for access. If the foster family regularly attends a specific dental practice,
the children should be considered as part of that arrangement. It is expected that
NHS dental practices would manage the children within the general dental practice
setting as they would all other children. The transfer process for orthodontics for
Children in Care has also been reviewed in order to make this as seamless as
possible and foster carers have also been made aware of the process.

NHSE are continuing to review pathways and treatment arrangements for all patients
to ensure that they can continue to access urgent dental care, should they need to.
Primarily, this has been facilitated through NHS 111. The special care dental
provider has also been ensuring access for vulnerable patients through their
network of local clinics and dental access centres.

NHS DENTAL SERVICES RECOVERY INITIATIVES

NHSE (Midlands) has made a large financial investment for initiatives designed to
increase access across primary, community and hospital dental care, as follows:

e Weekend Sessions — For LLR, 8 practices were contracted to provide 63
additional sessions at a cost of £41,202.00. Out of the 8 practices, 5 practices
were within Leicester providing 41 additional weekend sessions: with the
remaining 3 practices within Leicestershire providing 22 additional weekend
sessions. No uptake was received from Rutland. Additional national funding was
allocated as part of a national scheme and further applications were reviewed on
an on-going basis until the scheme ended on 31 March 2022.

Following the success of the Weekend Access scheme, NHSE (Midlands) have
recently invited further expressions of interest for 2022/23 where an additional
13 Practices were approved for this scheme. Unfortunately, no uptake was
received from Rutland.

e Weekday Sessions — For LLR, 3 practices were contracted to provided 55
additional sessions at a cost of £35,970.00. All 3 practices were within Leicester
providing 55 additional weekday sessions. No uptake was received from
practices in Leicestershire or Rutland. Additional national funding was allocated
as part of a national scheme and further applications were reviewed on an on-
going basis until the scheme ended on 31 March 2022.

NHSE approached the 5 dental providers across LLR who are contracted to open
from 8am to 8pm with the view to commissioning additional funded sessions.
Unfortunately, none of the providers felt that they had any capacity to provide
any further sessions.

e Additional Orthodontic Case Starts — For LLR, 4 practices are contracted to
provide additional capacity equating to 415 case starts to address the
orthodontic waiting lists. One practice is in Leicester offering an additional 40

30



case starts and 3 practices are within Leicestershire offering 375 additional case
starts. There was no interest received from Rutland.

Dedicated In Hours Urgent Care Slots (voluntary service from NHS general
dental practices) — additional capacity for NHS 111 to signpost patients without
a regular dental practice who require urgent dental care during surgery hours.
Five practices in LLR are taking part and providing extra appointments. One of
the five practices is in Leicester offering 3 additional urgent care appointments
per week with four out of the five practices within Leicestershire offering 54
additional urgent care appointments per week. There was no interest received
from practices in Rutland.

Support Practices - Community Dental Service: - NHSE have commissioned a
number of dental practices across the Midlands to work collaboratively with local
special care dental providers. This pilot is intended to provide additional capacity
to assist in routine review and support the management of special care dental
patients who are in the system. Unfortunately, there was no uptake from NHS
dental providers in Rutland. NHSE has been trying to understand the reasons
for the lack of interest and at present the main reason appears to be the lack of
practice capacity. Nevertheless, NHSE have secured additional funding to re-
run the pilot for financial year 2022/23 and hope to encourage uptake from NHS
dental providers in Rutland. Expressions of Interest were invited week commencing
8th August with a closing date of 22nd August and a service start date of 1st October
2022.

Local authority funding for oral health improvement:

0 £150,000 recurrent for 2 years to support oral health improvement initiatives
and activities

0 £40,000 non recurrent to support purchase and distribution of toothbrushing
packs to food banks and other venues

o £10,000 non recurrent to enable each local authority’s oral health promotion
service to expand and improve their resources

0 £5,000 non recurrent to support each local authority’s oral health promotion
services’ training resources

0 £10,000 non recurrent to provide each child with a toothbrushing pack as part
of the dental epidemiology survey

All the above funding was allocated jointly to Leicester City, Leicestershire and
Rutland County Councils. Funding was transacted to Leicester City Council to
be distributed between the three local authority areas via the LLR Oral Health
Promotion Partnership Board. Agreement on the spending of all the additional
funding is discussed and agreed at the LLR Oral Health Promotion Partnership
Board to ensure alignment with oral health needs of the local populations.

Waiting list initiative - Intermediate Minor Oral Surgery (IMOS) - Non recurrent
investment to support IMOS providers in reducing waiting times for patients to
be seen within 6 weeks of referral into the specialist service. At June 2022, there
were 3,173 LLR patients accepted onto the IMOS pathway and 2,038 have been
waiting over 6 weeks to be treated. This has been reduced by nearly 1,500
patients from June 2021 when the waiting list initiative was launched in 2021/22.

31



11.

111

11.2

11.3

As this is a specialist service commissioned on a system area footprint, data for
Rutland residents is unfortunately not available. Due to the number of patients
waiting for treatment in LLR, a further waiting list investment scheme has been
launched in July 2022 to reduce the number of patients waiting for treatment over
18 weeks to zero by March 2023.

e LLR Community (Special Care) Dental Service - non recurrent investment of
£62,048 to support waiting list initiatives for CDS-CIC during 2021/22. The waiting list
initiatives ran additional sessions for new referrals, first and follow up appointments for
patients with open courses of treatment. Additional dental hand pieces (dental drills)
were also purchased to support improving efficiency of dental clinics resulting in reduced
fallow time between patients. Commitment has also been secured for 2022/23 to
support reducing GA waiting list (subject to securing additional sessions at the hospital
trust).

e Acute Trusts are monitored on referral to treatment within 18 weeks, 52 week
waits and in addition, due to the impact of the pandemic, monitoring 104 week
waits. All Trusts were required to clear any 104 week waits by July 2022. As of
May 22, there were 26 LLR patients waiting over 104 week waits for Oral and
Maxillofacial Surgery and UHL had plans in place to clear this within the target
deadline. Please see Appendix 3 for Midlands Oral Surgery Referral to Treat
Trends and Appendix 4 for referrals into secondary care which have started to
recover, however, these remain lower than previous levels due to the reduction
in routine appointments in primary dental care. Additional non recurrent
investment of £35,791 has been secured to support dental waiting list initiatives
for UHL. The waiting list initiatives are to address 104 and 52 week waits in the
secondary care dental speciality Oral and Maxillofacial surgery. Further
commitment of £463,224 has been secured to support waiting list initiatives in
2022/23 (this information is not available at a lower level).

ORAL HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES

Whilst NHSE is responsible for commissioning NHS dental services, the
responsibility for public health, including oral health improvement, is with local
authorities who have the statutory role in assessing local oral health needs and
commissioning or providing evidence based oral health improvement programmes
appropriate to those needs. In addition, the Local Authority is also responsible for
oral health surveys to facilitate the planning and evaluation of the arrangements for
provision of dental services as part of the health service and NHSE are working with
Public Health local authority colleagues on this.

Oral diseases continue to be a leading public health problem with significant
inequalities. Those living in more deprived areas and vulnerable individuals are
more at risk, both of and from, oral diseases. Whilst there has been an overall
improvement in oral health in recent decades, further work is needed to improve oral
health and reduce inequalities.

Figure 8 shows that oral health remains in the top 20 rankings of the most prevalent
causes affecting the overall health and wellbeing of people living within Rutland from
1990 to 2019:

e rank 2 — dental decay (caries)
e rank 11 — edentulism (no teeth)

32



11.4

115

e rank 15 — periodontal (gum) disease)

Figure 8: Ranking of prevalent cases per 100,000 affecting overall health and
wellbeing of people living within Rutland (Global Burden of Disease)

Rutland i
Both sexes, All ages, Prevalent cases per 100,000
1990 rank 2019 rank

1 Tension headache ——— 1 Tension headache Communicable, matemal,
2 Permanent caries 2 Permanent caries &;i;it:; ek iiomal
3 Age-related hearing loss ———— 3 Age-related hearing loss Non-communicable diseases
4 Migraine - 4 Migraine Injuries

5 Asthma | 5 Falls

6 Gastro reflux disease e 6 Other skin diseases
|7 Latent TB infection | h =~ 17 Gastro reflux disease

8 Low back pain T/ A— 8 Low back pain

9 Premenstrual syndrome i 9 Cirrhosis and other due to NAFLD

10 Other skin diseases 10 Diabetes type 2

11 G6PD trait ~ 11 Edentulism

12 Falls f : 12 Fungal skin diseases

13 Other gynecological . 76 13 G6PD trait

14 Cirrhosis and other due to NAFLD D A 14 Osteoarthritis knee

15 Fungal skin diseases > j S 15 Periodontal diseases

16 Edentulism ( 16 Genital herpes

17 Genital herpes =1 17 Premenstrual syndrome

18 Periodontal diseases L~ J 18 Asthma

19 Other mechanical forces 119 COPD

20 Other unintentional e y 20 Endo/metab/blood/immune

21 Osteoarthritis knee / < |22 Latent TB infection

22 Endo/metab/blood/immune 23 Other mechanical forces

29 COPD a 24 Other gynecological

32 Diabetes type 2 f 28 Other unintentional

The findings of the 2017/18 survey of adults attending general dental practices in
England showed that poorer oral health disproportionately affected those at the
older end of the age spectrum and those living in more deprived areas. Within the

findings, Rutland has an older population.

The profile below describes the oral health of 5-year-olds living in Rutland. It uses
data from the National Dental Epidemiology Programme 2019 survey of 5-year-old
children. The profile is designed to help local government and health services
improve the oral health and wellbeing of children and tackle health inequalities. In
Rutland, 252 5-year- olds (approximately 75.1% of those sampled) were examined
at school by trained and calibrated examiners using the national standard method.
The 2018/19 national oral health survey of 5-year-old children showed wide
variation in both the prevalence and severity of dental decay among young children
across LLR (Figure 9). It can be seen that in Rutland; average levels of dental decay
are higher than the average for England. It can also be seen that it is higher when
compared against its regional (Leicestershire) and national (North Yorkshire) statistical

neighbours (Figure 10).

33



Figure 9: Percentage of 5 year olds with visually obvious dental decay

(2018/19)

45
40
35
30
25

Il sienificantly worse than England
[ similartoEngland
E Significantly better than England

20
15
10

3\ Q R\
& & & &
\% - A\ <
N & P <@
> > A &’
N & X e
N & @
S &Q’%&
o (@
& 9

Figure 10: Prevalence of experience of dental decay among 5-year-olds in
Rutland, its statistical neighbour comparatorsl, the East Midlands and

England

30
25
20
15

10

wv

Rutland

Statistical neighbour
within East Midlands:
Leicestershire

Statistical neighbour East Midlands
comparator 1: North

Yorkshire

=== England

*generated by the children's services statistical neighbour benchmarking tool , the neighbour within the East
Midlands has “close” comparator characteristics and the national neighbour has “very close” comparator characteristics

34


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-interactive-tool-lait

Figure 11: Proportion with high levels of plague present on upper front teeth

1.4
1.2
1

0.8
0.6
0'4 -
T

2 ]

Rutland Statistical neighbour Statistical neighbour East Midlands
within East Midlands: comparator 1: North
Leicestershire Yorkshire

=== England

11.6  Figure 11 shows that the proportion of 5-year-old children in Rutland with high levels
of plague present on their upper front teeth is higher than the regional
(Leicestershire), national (North Yorkshire) statistical neighbours as well as the East
Midlands. This is indicative of poor toothbrushing habits. Figure 12 shows the slope
index of inequality in the prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in
the East Midlands by deprivation, with those living in the most deprived areas being
affected the most. However, for Rutland, this is not as pronounced. Figure 14 shows
that there was a significant improvement in oral health of 5-year-old children in
Rutland in 2017 but unfortunately, this improvement has not been sustained.

Figure 12: Slope index of inequality in the prevalence of experience of dental
decay in 5-year-olds in the East Midlands

Sl = 26 .3%

Prevalence of experience of dental dacay (%)
N
4]

Most 2 3 4 5 [s] 7 a8 j=] Least
deprived IMD 2019 national deciles deprived

Error bars represent 95% confidence limits

35



11.7

Figure 13: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland,
by local authority Index of Multiple Deprivation IMD) 2019 quintiles

35
30
25
20
15
10
5 -
o] v T T T

Most deprived Second most Third most Second least Least deprived
deprived deprived deprived

Prevalence of experience
of dental decay (%)

IMD 2019 quintiles (within local authority)

Error bars represent 95% confidence limits

Figure 14: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland,
the East Midlands and England, by year

50

Prevalence of experience of dental decay (%)

Rutland East Midlands England
m2008 31.5 30.8 30.9
m2012 40.3 29.8 279
02015 28.8 27.5 24.7
m2017 15.6 25.1 23.3
02019 253 24.7 23.4

Error bars represent 95% confidence limits

Within Rutland, there are areas where there are higher than average levels of
experience of dental decay. At a Middle-layer Super Output Area (MSOA) level,
children living in MSOA 002 and MSOA 003 have the highest levels of experience
of dental decay (Figure 15).

36



11.8

Figure 15: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland,
by middle layer super output area (MSOA)

Percentage with experience
of dental decay

[ 1.0% - 9.9%

I 10.0% - 19.9%
B 20.0% - 29.9%
I 30.0% - 39.9%

Public health interventions can improve child oral health at a local level. Figure 16
shows the return on investment of oral health improvement programmes for 0-5 year
olds with water fluoridation providing the largest return, followed by targeted
provision of toothbrushes and paste by health visitors, targeted supervised
toothbrushing programmes and targeted fluoride varnish programme. The lowest
return on investment is the targeted provision of toothbrushes and paste by post
(without health visitor involvement). Apart from the application of fluoride varnish in
clinical dental settings, none of the oral health improvement programmes are within
the responsibility of NHSE but is part of the 0-19 Public Health contract: supporting
oral health promotion.

Figure 16: Return on investment of oral health improvement programmes for
0- 5 year olds

wEEE

0 ) 0
A targeted fluoride
varnish programme

Targeted provision of
toothbrushes and
paste by post

£1=

e S

£1 spent = £2.29

S =

After £1 spent = £1.03

5 years

£1 spent = £2.74 £1 spent = £1.54

After
10 years

37



11.9

11.10

11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

Water fluoridation

Water fluoridation is an effective and safe public health measure to reduce the
frequency and severity of dental decay, and narrow oral health inequalities.
Fluoridated water is currently supplied to 10% of the population in England but
unfortunately, residents in Rutland do not benefit from water fluoridation.

Although the responsibility for water fluoridation currently rests with the local
authority, this is being changed by the Health and Care Act 2022 as it introduces
measures that will level up disparities in oral health by making it simpler to add
fluoride to the water in more areas across England. The Act will change the decision-
making responsibility on water fluoridation that has resided with local authorities
since 2013 and transfer such decisions to be made centrally. Secondary legislation
has recently been laid before parliament on this but it is not known when this will be
debated.

Dental health remains a significant public health concern with approximately 37,000
hospital admissions of children to extract decayed teeth in 2019/20 nationally. The
estimated cost to the NHS of all tooth extractions in children is £50 million per year,
most of which were due to avoidable tooth decay. Evidence supports water
fluoridation as an effective public health measure that has the ability to benefit both
adults and children, reduce oral health inequalities and offers a significant return on
investment.

Toothbrushes and toothpaste by health visitors
In Rutland, health visitors provide oral health advice but do not distribute toothbrush
packs.

Supervised toothbrushing programmes

Currently, there is no supervised toothbrushing programme within Rutland. As per
section 10.1, Public Health is liaising with Leicester City Council with regards to the
LA oral health improvement funding to determine a toothbrushing programme within
Rutland.

Fluoride varnish

NHSE are responsible for fluoride varnish applications in clinical settings. Dentists
are recommended to apply fluoride varnish to the teeth of all children and young
people twice a year from the age of three. In addition, for those giving concern due
to dental decay risk, they should receive 2 or more times the application of fluoride
varnish in a year. Fluoride varnish provides extra protection against tooth decay
when used in addition to brushing. It is a gel that sets quickly when applied to
children’s teeth using a soft brush. Therefore, every child and young person living
in Rutland should be offered fluoride varnish applications at least twice yearly from
the age of three when attending their dental practice. There is no cost for this as it
is available free of charge on the NHS for all children and young people. Figure 17
shows that less than 40% of children and young people attending an NHS dental
practice in Rutland received fluoride varnish applications in 2017/18.

38



Figure 17: Variation in claims for fluoride varnish applications (0-18 years)

2017/18
NHS

Variation in claims for fluoride varnish applications
(0-18 years) 2017/18

70.0

Signifi
i gtand
b
50.0
40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0
0.0

Leicester Blaby Morth West Charnwood Cadby and Melton Rutland
Leicestershire Db gston

11.15 Poor oral health impacts on children and families (Figure 18) and affects children’s
ability to eat, speak, sleep, play and socialise. A quarter (25.3%) of five-year-olds in
Rutland have tooth decay when they start school. Children who have toothache or
who need treatment may have to be absent from school and parents may also have
to take time off work to take their children to a dentist or to hospital. Oral health is
therefore an important aspect of a child’s overall health status and of their school
readiness. Oral health is seen as a marker of wider health and social care issues
including poor nutrition and obesity.

Figure 18: Impact of Poor Oral Health in Children and Families

Research about

extractions in children A BVTEOR G

in North West hospitals 3 days of school

found that 26% had were missed
ssed days from school due to dental

becau e of dental pain problems

and infection

67% of parents 38% of children had Many days of work

reported their child sleepless nights were potentially los

had been in pain because of the pain as 41% of parents/
carers were employed

Source: Health matters: child dental health https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters- child-dental-
health/health- matters-child-dental-health

11.16 There is strong evidence of the benefits of breastfeeding to both mother and child
(Figure 19). There is strong evidence that breastfed babies experience less tooth
decay and that breastfeeding provides the best nutrition for a baby’s overall health.

39


http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-

Figure 19: Benefits of breastfeeding

6 Not being breastfed is associated with an
increased risk of infectious morbidity such as
gastroenteritis, respiratory infections and
middle ear infections

Support and advice for mothers who are breastfeeding

Breastfeeding up to 12 months is associated :
with a decreased risk of tooth decay

11.17 There is some evidence that dental decay and obesity may be more likely to occur

in the same populations. Local authority data, collected at population level confirms
that some correlation between dental decay and obesity prevalence can be
observed at age five years; however, it is not currently known whether this
relationship exists in older children. Using this type of group-level cross-sectional
data, it is not possible to say whether an individual who is overweight or obese is at
higher risk of dental decay or vice versa. Well-designed cohort studies in
populations that are comparable to the UK are required to answer this type of
qguestion and there are currently insufficient studies of this type available. Despite
this, because deprivation and high intakes of free sugars are known risk factors for
dental decay and for obesity, it is likely that interventions that reduce these common
risk factors have the potential to impact both conditions at the population level.

11.18 Figure 20 shows that mortality rates from oral cancer in Leicester are significantly

Rate per 100,000

higher than the national average and have also been increasing significantly over
the years. The Rutland value cannot be calculated and reported as the number of
cases is too small. Although tobacco use has been proven to increase the risk of

oral cancer, people who use both alcohol and tobacco are at an especially high risk
of contracting the disease.

Figure 20: Oral cancer mortality rates across LLR

14.0
12.0
10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0 ]: =
2.0 III
0.0
Leicester Leicestershire England
M 2008-10 M 2009-11 ®2010-12 2011-13 m2012-14
M 2013-15 M 2014 -16 W 2015-17 M 2016-18 M 2017-19

Note: Rutland value CZrdvot be calculated as number of cases is too small



12

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

13

13.1

COLLABORATIVE WORKING

The local NHSE dental commissioning team works collaboratively with Public Health
colleagues in Leicestershire and Rutland County Councils around prevention
initiatives linked to oral health improvement and in amplifying key oral health
messages. Further information has been provided by the Council’s public health
team on the local oral health improvement initiatives across Rutland in Appendix 5.

The local NHSE dental commissioning team has also been having regular meetings
with the local dental profession via the Local Dental Committee. NHSE are grateful
for the co-operation received from the profession in mobilising Urgent Dental Care
Centres and co-producing solutions to help manage the restrictions in NHS dental
services. This has included joint working between the local Community (Special
Care) Dental Service and General Dental Practices.

There is a Local Dental Network (LDN) covering the LLR ICB with an LDN Chair in
place. There are also a number of Managed Clinical Networks (groups of local
clinicians) who have continued to meet virtually to plan care and agree good practice
guidance to support practices in managing their patients. The Urgent Care Network
met weekly early on in the pandemic to help plan and deliver ongoing access to
urgent dental care.

The NHSE commissioning team have also been working with colleagues in the
Communications team to draft a series of stakeholder briefings to update key
partners and the public on the situation with respect to NHS dental services. These
have been distributed to local authorities, Directors of Public Health and CCGs.
Examples of tweets that have been shared on Twitter are given in Appendix 6. There
IS some ongoing concern about a reluctance amongst some people in attending
for dental care due to the pandemic either because they do not want to be a burden
on the health service or because they fear getting coronavirus. A campaign
reassuring people that it is safe to attend NHS dental appointments has also been
launched by NHSE.

NHSE have also engaged with Healthwatch Rutland and they have shared
intelligence on local concerns or on difficulties people may be having accessing
NHS dental services.

NATIONAL DENTAL CONTRACT REFORM

The Chief Dental Officer for England published the outcome of the 2022/23 Dental
Contract Negotiations on 19th July 2022. This represents the first significant
change to the national dental contract from the government since its introduction in
2006. The resulting reforms are significant changes which seek to address the
challenges associated with delivering care to higher needs patients and making it
easier for patients to access NHS care as follows:

¢ Refining the UDA allocation to support patient care to account for complexity

e Supportive resources for patients, the public and dental teams around NICE
dental recall intervals

e Establishing a minimum indicative UDA value to support effective delivery of
care, workforce and financial viability

e Increasing the role for dental therapists to be able to accept patients for NHS

41



14

14.1

15

15.1

16

16.1

16.2

treatments, providing fillings, sealants, preventative care for adults and children,
thus freeing up dentists’ time for urgent and complex cases.

e Improving information on the availability of NHS dentistry for patients and the
public by requiring dental practices to regularly update the Directory of Services
(Find a Dentist facility on the NHS website)

e Maximising access from dental budgets and enabling high-performing dental
practices the opportunity to increase their activity by a further 10% to deliver
more care.

Some of the changes will not be introduced until later in 2022 as they will require
the government to pass primary legislation before they can be introduced. These
important changes are but the first step on a journey, with further engagement and
further development to come to reform and modernise the NHS dental contract even
more. This next phase of reform will start imminently, to build on the changes made
and tackle longer-standing concerns.

CONSULTATION

Assessment of Access: Local authority public health colleagues have already
started an oral health needs assessment has already begun and is planned for
completion by early 23 (due to the proposal to include a dental service consultation
across Rutland). NHSE also anticipate having access shortly to a mapping tool
which will help to identify local areas which may have specific issues in order to
assist with a more targeted approach in tackling them. NHSE will work
collaboratively with Public Health colleagues in the local authority to understand the
current and future oral health needs of Rutland, to inform the appropriate
commissioning of services.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

There are no alternative options to the provision of NHS dentistry, however the
changes to the national dental contract reform could help to tackle access issues for
Rutland, particularly by increasing the role of dental therapists. However, the
improvement in oral health cannot rely solely on access to NHS dentistry as it
requires a whole system approach with evidence-informed public health initiatives
as well.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications for the terminated Rutland practice. The financial
value of the contract will remain the same in order for the activity to be dispersed/re-
procured in order to maintain provision of services. NHSE are working with local
authority public health colleagues in understanding the impact in order to ensure
equity of access.

In terms of the delegation of commissioning responsibility to the ICB, the financial
allocation for the commissioning of NHS dental services will be transferred to the
LLR ICB on the 1st. April 2023. Baseline allocations have been based on 2019/20
outturn as this is the last full year not affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The
allocations are also uplifted by growth and inflation. Further work is being completed
to understand the true level of need in Rutland, this may have financial or workforce
implications with regards to the services that are commissioned.

42


https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/find-a-Dentist

17

17.1

18

18.1

19

19.1

20

20.1

21

21.1

22

22.1

22.2

22.3

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS

Please see reference to points relating to the delegation of commissioning
responsibility, changes to decision making for water fluoridation, national dental
contract reform and also the statutory role of public health local authority for the oral
health epidemiology survey and 0-5 year children’s’ public health service.

DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed as there are
no personal identifiable data contained within the report.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

An Equality Impact Assessment (EglA) has not been completed; however equity of
access will be considered as part of the oral health needs assessment. Individual
dental providers also have a responsibility to ensure their services are accessible to
the local population.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
There are none identified at present.
HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS
Please see section 10.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

The 1 July 2022 marked a major milestone in the NHS calendar as the way health
and care services are planned, paid for and delivered. The changes are to better
meet the health and care needs of local populations. Following the passing of the
Health and Care Act 2022 earlier this year, Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) are now
on a statutory footing as part of the wider Integrated Care System (ICS), therefore
Clinical Commissioning Groups have been abolished. The LLR ICB assumed
delegated responsibility for Primary Medical Services and will also assume
delegated responsibility for Dental (Primary, Secondary and Community), General
Optometry and Pharmaceutical services (including Dispensing doctors) from 1 April
2023 (subject to formal sign-off by NHSE). Statutory guidance for ICBs has also
been published to support effective partnership working with people and
communities to improve services and meet the public involvement legal duties. The
LLR ICB Head of Transitions for contracts is already engaged in the Rutland dental
transition.

The milestones above mark the ambition of greater integration, as set out in the
NHS Long Term Plan and enables more joined-up care to improve health outcomes
and tackle inequalities of access to local populations. By delegating many of the
services that NHSE commission to ICBs and giving systems greater responsibility
for a broader range of functions, they will have more flexibility to integrate services
across care pathways that will enable continuity of care, and design and improve
services so that they better meet local priorities and needs.

The Midlands Primary Care Operating Model has been co-designed to provide an
43


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/working-in-partnership-with-people-and-communities-statutory-guidance/

22.4

22.5

22.6

22.7

23

23.1

23.2

23.3

approved framework for the delegation of the function to each Integrated Care Board
(ICB). The Operating Model provides an overview of the functions and sets out the
key design principles that support the transition in 2022/23. LLR ICB approval of
the model is one of the necessary gateways in the national NHSE delegation
assessment framework

The Operating Model sets out the principles, pathway, key governance, workforce,
and financial information that will be co-designed with the LLR ICB during the
transition period for the safe and effective delegation of these functions. The
transition process will:

e provide the detail that enables ICBs to undertake the workforce and contract due
diligence as well as setting out the key financial principles for delegation of the
commissioning budgets,

e manage the risk of moving from a regional budget to splitting across eleven
systems,

e Dbe transparent and ordered through finance governance groups to complete the
due diligence and safe transfer to ICBs from April 2023.

A Governance structure has been proposed that enables ICBs to set the annual
plan and strategic direction of the Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental functions and
make localised decisions where possible, whilst the current team are enabled to
deliver day to day contracting and commissioning functions. The process has been
designed to ensure minimal disruption and smooth transition to support both
services and patients.

There is a vision for one plan for the LLR ICS. The principles and priorities for the
system strategy have been agreed and the full strategy is still being developed for
the end of 2022. This is a statutory requirement of the ICP and so will be lead
through the LLR Health and Wellbeing Partnership, with support from the wider
system.

Local authority Public Health colleagues are currently undertaking an oral health
needs assessment for Rutland which will serve to better understand some of the
impacts of the pandemic on oral health and oral health inequalities for its resident
population. It is anticipated that this piece of work will be completed and presented
to the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board by early 2023

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY

NHSE are working at pace to secure additional investments to increase access to
NHS Dentistry across the East Midlands, whilst appreciating the challenges that still
exist to date from the impact of COVID-19.

NHSE recognise a need within Rutland for additional NHS dental access and will
ensure continuation of services as a temporary measure whilst the procurement is
progressing, working with Public Health colleagues within Leicestershire County
Council in ensuring equity of access for Rutland’s residents.

Improved access to NHS dentistry on its own will not secure improvements in oral

health for Rutland and requires evidence-based Public Health interventions as well.
The evidence from the oral health needs assessment will provide important

44



intelligence to inform the appropriate commissioning of services.

24 BACKGROUND PAPERS

24.1  There are no additional background papers to the report.

25 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Location of dental practices (including orthodontics) across Rutland
Appendix 2 - Activity Trends in Primary Care

Appendix 3 — Midlands Oral Surgery Referral to Treatment (18 week and 52
week waiters)

Appendix 4 — Midlands Secondary Care Dental Referral Trends

Appendix 5 — Oral Health Improvement activities across Leicestershire and
Rutland led by local authority Public Health teams

Appendix 6 - Examples of tweets shared by the NHS England Communication
Team

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available upon request — Contact 01572

722577

45



Appendix 1: Location of dental practices (including orthodontics)
NB: The numbers denote the number of NHS dental practices within the location

Map 1: Location of dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland against
deprivation ) \ |

—~aaT

Map 2 below demonstrates that every dental practice is within a 10 mile radius of every
Rutland resident.

Map 2: 10 mile reach of NHS dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland

S MELTON ——
“_~MOWBRAY

.....



Map 3 below demonstrates that all NHS dental practices in Rutland are accessible by
car within 20 minutes in rush hour. The map also shows the 30 minutes reach of NHS
dental practices in Rutland for those who are not resident in the County and who
therefore may be accessing NHS dentistry within Rutland.

Map 3: 30 minute travel by car (rush hour) to NHS dental practices
(including orthodontics) in Rutland

Wy o S oy

e BINGHAM .

{BRIDGFORD H J
o

4. GRANTHAM

duGH '*-,

SYSTON

ICESTER

. ( ; — ’:"
O ! e & ol
IRTH o o sl
] 2 L k=
KETTERING THRAPSTON

BURTON LATIMER ©

> ) Car: by distance
1. Car: by time (@ Rush hour

9 €€ 15 20 30 ) minutes

Map 4 below demonstrates that not every resident in Rutland is able to access an NHS
dental practice within 30 minutes on a typical weekday morning using public transport.

Map 4: 30 minute travel by public transport (weekday morning) to NHS dental
practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland

A
MELTON— - BO!
“MOWBRAY

To sites _\,_” Weekday morning  ~ ]

=9 T« 15 20 30 ) minutes

a7




Appendix 2: Activity Trends in Primary Care for Units of Dental Activity (UDA) —

Midlands

mmmm UDA % pre-letter 7

s Estimate to full calendar month
— 22/23 Q1

== 100%

UDA delivery Sept 2020 to June 2022

mm UDA % Qtr 4 ( >45%) CALENDAR MONTHS
—21/22 year Q3
Est to full month 2022

a0%

80%

g

2

e

E

Mesept M7 O MB Nov MIDec  Mi0lan  M11Feh

50% | I
4
3 I I

% I I

i H121/22 SCHEDULE months
i 21/22 04

= == Performance Threshold

’
4
7
’
-
"
7

MizMar  M1Ap MZMay  M3un  Mamly  MSAug

48

7
I
1
7
’
i’
!
r
7
I
Prapn S
o
o
5994
MeSept  M7Oc MANav  M9Dee  MIO_ian

MI1I_Feh  MI12_Mar  M1Apr MZMay M2 un



Appendix 3: Midlands Oral Surgery Referral to Treatment (18 week and 52 Week
Waiters)

Note — The updated May RTT position for Oral Surgery shows that at 18 weeks the
recovery remains plateaued between 45% and 50%. (The figure for May is 49.9%, an
increase from 46.6%). The number of 52-week waiters has increased as data was missing
in previous submission and Trusts have been focusing on reducing the number of 104-
week waiters. The proportion of the total waiting list that has been waiting 52 weeks
dropped to 10% for May from 1 % in April 2022.

At the current time data cannot be split to report for LLR.

Overall RTT performance, Oral Surgery, East Midlands May 2022

100 0%
50.0%
80.0%
710.0%
60.0%

AG.B%
50.0%

s, 5 -
A0.0%
J0.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%
Dic-21 Jan-22 Fiah-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 Mlay-22

Number of 52-week waiters, Oral Surgery, East Midlands

= 2391

2239
1583 ?L‘K]i‘
2000
1791 4 1776 1789 e 1?&9
lesz, 2&50"" 1'659
....... 1527
1500 e WEE e BN
soinnnensanent - YIRS 1378
1000
632
S50
500 I |
o

lan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun21 Jul21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Now-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-32 Sep-22 Oct-22 Now-22

49



Appendix 4: Midlands Secondary Care Dental Referral Trends

Referrals - Average for 2019/20 vs May 2022 - Region

4657

4500

3920

4000

3500

2500

2115

2004

15040

1000

5

g

EO5
. Tm

Oral Surgery Orthodontics Oral M adicine

0

B Morithly average 2019/20 ®May-22

50



Appendix 5: Oral Health Improvement activities across Rutland led by local authority
Public Health teams

Oral Health Improvement activities within Rutland are currently focussed mainly on Early
Years. However, with the additional funding from NHS E/I, the reach can be extended
further. The LLR ICB footprint has received £150,000 for a period of 2 years to support oral
health improvement initiatives and activities. At the last Oral Health Promotion Partnership
Board, it was agreed the money would be spent on a number of initiatives including
increasing the capacity to develop a care homes oral health education offer, support for
Making Every Contact Count, developing information on oral health for people with diabetes
and assessing feasibility of community fluoride varnish initiatives. The LLR ICB footprint
has also received

£40,000 non recurrent funding to support purchase and distribution of toothbrushing packs
to food banks and other venues which the oral team promotion teams are sourcing a provider
for. Oral health improvement activities are described below:

Dental Epidemiology Survey

Statutory requirement of the Public Health grant is to conduct an annual Dental
Epidemiology Fieldwork Survey and Public Health commission this from a specialist dental
provider. Every 2 years there is a survey of 5-year olds with another age group chosen for
the intervening year. This service is commissioned across Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland and planning is underway for the next round of procurement for the new service to
start on 1st August 2023.

Healthy Child Programme

Health visitors have an important role in providing advice and support as part of the healthy
child programme. Health Visitors provide oral health advice, toothbrush packs and support
and signpost to dental service if appropriate. Key touch points help identify families that need
additional support for example, dental services the siblings of children who have attended
hospital for dental extractions due to tooth decay or encouraging dental attendance when
the first tooth erupts at 6 months of age, to enable the dental teams to give preventable
messages. The oral health element has been strengthened in the recommissioning of the 0-
11 children’s public health service due for implementation 15t September 2022.

Following completion of the Rutland oral health needs assessment further work will be
completed to confirm the potential oral health improvement services required in Rutland.

51



Appendix 6: Examples of tweets shared by the NHS England Communication Team

14:514 .

= )

< Tweet

NHS Midlands @
@NHSMidlands

. If you need urgent dental
care and do not have a dentist,
you can access NHS 111 online
or by phone.

111.nhs.uk &3
#HelpUsHelpYou

If you need urgent dental
care or do not have a

dentist, get in touch with
NHS 111 online or by
phone for advice.

14:02 - 04/11/2020 - Hootsuite Inc.

Tweet your reply

© Q Q &

14:514

NHS Midlands &
@NHSMidlands

. Dental practices are open,
but they are prioritising
vulnerable patients with the
most urgent need.

fl Contact your dental practice
by phone or email ™

X Do not contact a GP. They
cannot provide dental treatment.

#HelpUsHelpYou

Get in touch with your

dental practice by phone
or email where advice or
an appointment will be
given if appropriate.

Tweet your reply

© Q Q &

52

ull ¥ @)

14:5249 .

)
ii

4 Tweet

NHS Midlands @
@NHSMidlands

 Contact your dental practice
by phone or email where advice
or an appointment will be given if
appropriate.

& This may be by video or
phone.

#HelpUsHelpYou

Dental practices are open,
but may be prioritising the

vulnerable or those with
the most urgent need.

Get in touch with your
practice if you need advice.

Tweet your reply

© Q Q &




NHS

England
Midlands

€q

NHS Primary Care
Dental Services
INn Rutland




Challenges in Rutland NHS

e Access ISsues
e Adults,
 Children and young People (Orthodontics and general services)
* Vulnerable groups

a1
N

e Contract handback

e Data (National Epidemiology Surveys 5 & 12 year olds)



NHS

 Water fluoridation is an effective and safe
public health measure to reduce the
frequency and severity of dental decay,
and narrow oral health inequalities.

 Significantly reduces extractions and cavities
samong children and young people.

e Evidence shows children in areas of England
with higher fluoride concentrations were up to
63% less likely to be admitted to hospital
for tooth extractions due to decay than those
In areas with lower fluoride concentrations.

. The greatest benefit was seen with children There are currently NO water
and young people in the most deprived areas. fluoridation schemes in Rutland.



__Initiatives . lINHS

e Weekday and Weekend Sessions
e Dedicated Urgent Slots during surgery opening hours

s e Additional NHS dental sessions — 8-8 NHS Dental Providers
e Support practices for Community Dental Service

e Additional Orthodontic Case Starts
NO UPTAKE BY RUTLAND PRACTICES



Future Opportunities & Solutions

Local Authority funding for Oral Health Improvement

Integrated Care Systems and Dental Contract Reform

Communications — NHSE, Low Income Scheme

Collaborative Working — LDN Chair, Local Authority and HealthWatch

Getting it right first time (GIRFT) - find and share best practice and reduce
unwarranted variation in ways of working in Primary Care




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12a
Rutland County Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Scoping Document: Museum Task and Finish Group

. Topic

1.1 To consider the future of the Cultural offer in Rutland.
This, however, is a very large piece of work and phase
one, which is herein scoped, relates to the Museum
operations.

Purpose

2.1 With the background of worsening financial pressure,
to consider the scope of Museum services and
recommend opportunities to the Cabinet for a
reduction in the net cost of the operation through cost
reductions, income enhancement while recognising
the need for very significant capital investment in the
Museum buildings.

2.2 To consider the issues raised in Para 8 below

Members (Identify Chairperson)

TBA

Portfolio holders

e Councillor Marc Oxley

Officers
59



e Robert Clayton, Head of Culture and Registration
e Penny Sharp, Director of Places

6. Rationale

6.1 What does the Review hope to achieve?
With significant financial pressures affecting the
Council, every cost centre will be considered in order
to achieve net operational savings. The objective of
this review will be to provide Cabinet with well-
researched ideas to reduce net costs and/or operating
models having considered all the options open to the
Councill

6.2 What is the community importance and benefit?
Legally local authorities are obliged to store historic
articles of importance — the collection and provide
access to the public

6.3 How does it fit in with the Council’s corporate
priorities/scrutiny priorities?
The approved Corporate Plan states at Priority 1 — A
Special Place — Objective 4 - We will enable a thriving,
diverse, sustainable heritage and cultural offer with
increased community leadership. The work of the
Scrutiny Committee will assist Cabinet and Officers to
complete the service review to manage heritage
assets and future service delivery, including
community led (sic)

6.4 What opportunities are there to make a distinctive
impact?
To understand where the £2.5m bid to the Levelling
Up Fund come into the equation and ensuring that the
Council meets its objective Objective 21 to take further
action to ensure the council lives within its financial
means.

7. Background 60



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Is the review looking at existing policy or a new
policy?

The review will consider existing policies and make
recommendations for new or amended policies as the
evidence may demonstrate.

How does it relate to existing policy?

An analysis of existing policies will be considered by
the Scrutiny e.g. Collections policy and requirements
for Museum Accreditation

Has the need for the review come about from an
iIssue arising from national or local events?

The continuing pressures on finance and lack of
national funding will impact the ability of the Council to
deliver a full range of front-line services. With the
discovery of two significant finds in the County, there
will be further pressure on those finances.

Are there any relevant community views to refer
to? (e.g. previous consultations)

There is significant interest from the community in all
aspects of the service and especially the Friends of the
Museum and Arts4Rutland. In the Future Rutland
Conversation in 2021, residents were clear that they
valued the cultural offer and the role which the
Museum and its facilities provided in that offer.

Issues to be considered
The following aspects of the Museum’s activities may wish
to be considered in no particular order

8.1

What should the Museum service deliver?

8.2 What is the Museum service required to deliver by law

e.g. storage of materials of interest and access by the
public?

8.3 Consideration of the current collections policy and

whether it is relevag for today and the future and



10.

8.4

8.5
8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

would this result in any disposals including sales of
items

What are the operational alternatives? Partnering with
other bodies such as the Rutland Agricultural Society,
local private sector owners of farm machinery (Ellis,
Knight and Hinch) or other local authorities.
Consideration of options such as different operating
models including a Charitable Trust, closure of part of
the site, expansion due to Levelling Up Fund bid, etc
Are there alternative revenue funding streams?

Are there examples of other small Museums operating
with nil local authority revenue support or outsourcing,
both good (?) and not so good (Peterborough)?
Where else could the collection be stored? LCC have
in the past considered building a warehouse at
Glenfield. Currently the collection is stored on site at
the Museum or in South Street and some of the paper
archives in LCC store at Wigston.

What might be the impact of the Levelling Up Bid, if
successful, on future revenue streams both positive
and negative?

Is the space being used to its best in terms of
exhibitions, collection storage and office
accommodation?

8.10What might be the impact of the Asset Review and

works required to bring the buildings up to an
acceptable and useable standard?

Timetable

9.1
9.2

Key deadlines -TBA
Length of review - Fixed end date to be identified

Methodology/Approach
What method of enquiry will be most suitable for the
review? 62



11.

This document is not being prescriptive and would propose
that the members consider how they might gather the
evidence efficiently which might include some of the
following:

Desk-based review of papers

Site visits / observations
Comparisons with other authorities
Workshops / Focus Groups
Interview officers

Calling witnesses to give evidence

Evidence Sources

What are the key lines of enquiry?

Consider some of the following:

Mendoza Report — An independent review of
Museums in England (2017) copy attached
Government guidance, NPPF and legislation

Service plans

Performance Indicators- comparison of costs for
similar sized museums operated by private
organisations and other local authorities

Evidence from other reviews

Independent research articles and papers

Are there any stakeholders or interest groups the Task
and Finish Group wants to hear from in addition to
inviting them to meeting?

Consider other models (e.g. Brighton and Hove City
Council transfer of operations to Charitable Trust April
2018)

63



12. Witnesses
Who would the Group wish to invite to its meetings?

A potential witness list to be decided by members might
include:

Service users

Stakeholders / Interest Groups
Cabinet Members

External partners

Charities and other organisations
Professional experts

13. Other considerations

e Is there scope for site visits?

e  Which officers will be influential in review process?
Robert Clayton

e Any obstacles to review outcomes?

e  Opportunity for members to better understand the
issues of Museum when considering budgets in future
years

64



Agenda ltem 12e
Rutland County Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Scoping Document: Task and Finish Groups; Working
Groups; Evidence Gathering etc.

1. Topic
1.1 Public Bus Transport in Rutland

2. Purpose
2.1 To provide evidence based advice to Cabinet and
Council to help shape the future commissioning of bus
services within Rutland.

3. Members (ldentify Chairperson)
To be confirmed

4. Portfolio holders
Cllr Rosemary Powell

5. Officers
e Emma Odabas
e Angela Culleton
e Penny Sharp

6. Rationale
(Think about the challenges/concerns — what needs to
change?)

6.1 The objective is to secure a road based public
transport system which meets the needs of all
residents in Rutland and is cost effective. This means
that as far as possggle scholars transport and public



transport is integrated and community based
services, such as the Uppingham Hopper,
compliment provision.

6.2 Public transport is essential for many people,
especially those on low income and those unable to
drive. It is the means by which essential services are
accessed and leisure activities undertaken; thus
being essential to the quality of life for many.

6.3 This review will help deliver RCC’s Corporate
Strategy Priority 2: Living sustainably and combatting
the climate crisis through the power of choice, the
removal of barriers, and real collective action;
specifically commitment 9: We will support
sustainable methods of transport through cycle
routes, bridleways, public footpaths and community
led transport.

7.Background

7.1 Inrecent years the major bus operators providing
routes within Rutland have asked for increased levels
of subsidy and, in some cases, handed back routes.
Our neighbouring local authorities have reduced or
ceased subsidising some cross border routes into
their authority areas, thus making them non-viable
overall and as our population ages the need for public
transport increases. Like all local authorities RCC’s
overall budget is under immense pressure and cannot
continue to increase subsidies on public transport so
a major review of how public transport is
commissioned in the County is necessary.

7.2 Rutland County Council Produced a Transport Plan,

its 4" in 2018
66



file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Draft%20Moving%
20Rutland%20Forward%20(Full%20Document).pdf
and, in order to apply for grant funding under the
Government’s National Bus Strategy “Bus Back
Better”, it produced a further policy in 2022.
file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Rutland%20EP%?2
OPlan%20and%20Scheme%20-
%20March%202022.pdf Whilst a well-researched and
comprehensive document this did not succeed in
getting Government funding and without that funding
a different approach will have to be taken to deliver
bus services in the County. The basic premise of this
document, however, of moving from a scheduled
service to a demand responsive service, is still valid.
The Council aims to produce a new Local Transport
Plan by December 2023 and this scrutiny review will
contribute to this.

8. Timetable

8.1 To report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee by
March 2023.

9. Methodology/Approach
Members will:

e Consider the work currently being undertaken by officers
in relation to DRT and evaluate the options they
produce, taking account of available national guidance.

e View other DRT operations in rural areas for example in
Cambridgeshire
(https://transport.cambridgeshirepeterborough-
ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/ and
https://transport.camlg;idqeshirepeterborouqh—



file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Draft%20Moving%20Rutland%20Forward%20(Full%20Document).pdf
file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Draft%20Moving%20Rutland%20Forward%20(Full%20Document).pdf
file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Rutland%20EP%20Plan%20and%20Scheme%20-%20March%202022.pdf
file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Rutland%20EP%20Plan%20and%20Scheme%20-%20March%202022.pdf
file:///C:/Users/gwaller/Downloads/Rutland%20EP%20Plan%20and%20Scheme%20-%20March%202022.pdf
https://transport.cambridgeshirepeterborough-ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/
https://transport.cambridgeshirepeterborough-ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/
https://transport.cambridgeshirepeterborough-ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/ting/

10.

ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/ting/ ; and in
North Yorkshire
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-
yorkshire-pilots-dial-bus-service-improve-rural-rides
Review national guidance e.qg.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/demand-
responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit/demand-
responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit#action3
Review national research such as
https://eprints.ncl.ac.uk/file store/production/12981/B9C
57C8D-4AD9-4ED6-80E7-C05258B34516.pdf or
https://www.local.gov.uk/systra-lga-bus-report

Evidence Sources

In addition to those mentioned above Members will consider
the following:

11.

Legislation in relation to managing public transport.
Current RCC policy and service plans

Performance indicators such as bus usage data,
customer complaints and RCC spend per user on public
transport.

The RCC’s 2013 Task and Finish Group’s
recommendations regarding transport.

Witnesses

Service users (via the RCC currently established user

group)
Bus Companies

Call Connect (Lincolnshire)
68


https://transport.cambridgeshirepeterborough-ca.gov.uk/buses/demand-responsive-travel/ting/
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-yorkshire-pilots-dial-bus-service-improve-rural-rides
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-yorkshire-pilots-dial-bus-service-improve-rural-rides
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit#action3
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit#action3
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit/demand-responsive-transport-local-authority-toolkit#action3
https://eprints.ncl.ac.uk/file_store/production/12981/B9C57C8D-4AD9-4ED6-80E7-C05258B34516.pdf
https://eprints.ncl.ac.uk/file_store/production/12981/B9C57C8D-4AD9-4ED6-80E7-C05258B34516.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/systra-lga-bus-report

e Other local authorities running DRT (e.qg.
Cambridgeshire)

12. Other considerations

e There is a necessity to manage the budget and this
needs to be considered. However, it is recognised that
investment may be necessary.

69



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12f

Rutland County Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Scoping Document

. Topic

1.1 Economic Development, levelling up and devolution.
These issues are inextricably linked but the scope of
this review will be economic development.

Purpose

2.1 The aim of this review is to analyse available data and
experiences of other authorities to recommend key
focus areas to be considered in the production of an
economic development strategy.

2.2 This strategy needs to align with other plans within
Rutland such as the Local Plan, Local Transport Plan
and Health and Wellbeing Strategy so we can
effectively deliver the communities ‘Future Rutland’
vision we have endorsed as a council.

Members (Identify Chairperson)

Portfolio Holder:
4.1 Councillor Lucy Stephenson
Officers

e Penny Sharp — Director — Places
71



e Ingrid Hooley — Head of Sustainable Economy and
Place

6. Rationale

6.1 The Government’s Levelling Up agenda is predicated
on improving economic prosperity. In order to
capitalise and benefit from Levelling Up investment
and opportunities Rutland needs to have a clear
economic development strategy. Economic
development is a critical component for the future of
Rutland. It drives economic prosperity in the area,
creating new job opportunities and most importantly
facilitating an improved quality of life, which includes
increased access to opportunities for existing and
future residents.

6.2 The main objective of the review, therefore, will be to
recommend key focus areas that will be considered in
the production of an economic development strategy.

6.3 We will all have opinions on what the economy in
Rutland should look like and what issues developing
our economy might address. However we need to
ensure the economic development strategy is built on
a strong evidence base, as this might suggest a
different approach on matters such as business sector
development, skills and employment support, transport
or housing. We need to understand what the data is
telling us, identify key areas that the strategy
development can explore and ultimately provide
actions to address. This will ensure we develop
targeted policies which not only deliver what our
current residents want, but also what future residents
may need.

72



6.4 The opportunity this review offers is to ‘join-up’ key
policies.

7. Background

7.1 Our role as a council is to develop programmes,
policies or targeted interventions that seek to improve
the economic well-being for all of our community.
Economic development priorities vary, economic
development strategies often aim for common, positive
results, such as increasing economic productivity and
prosperity or quality of life (especially for distinct
groups), getting more skilled workers living in our
community, retaining businesses, and attracting or
growing new ones.

7.2 The new strategy will be replacing the Economic
Growth Strategy 2014-21. A new Economic Strategy
was due to be developed during 2020, however, it was
decided to put this on hold due to the pandemic.

7.3 Much has happened since the Economic Strategy was
originally published. A new Government in 2019 set
new priorities and the global pandemic and rising fuel
prices has impacted on businesses however large or
small. It is essential therefore that a new strategy is
developed to take into account this changed
landscape.

7.4 The increased pressure for local authorities to join
together as combined authorities, and the
Government’s levelling up agenda means that if RCC
IS to receive benefits from these initiatives the Council
needs to be clear what benefits it might want and
developing a data driven economic strategy will aid
this. The strategy should also provide the platform to
inform which partnerg;the Council should proactively



engage with to achieve the identified outcomes e.g.
Local Enterprise Partnerships.

7.5 1t is important that current employers, and interest
groups of employers such as Discover Rutland inform
the strategy as well as local and regional educational
institutions who are nurturing future employees and
residents more widely.

8. Timetable

8.1 The initial data review will be concluded by December
2022

8.2 To be completed by March 2023
9. Methodology/Approach

9.1 The initial work will be a desk top review of data and
consideration of economic development policies
adopted by authorities similar to Rutland and the
impact these have had. Discussion with officers will
also form part of this process as will consideration of
research already undertaken, for example by the LGA
Rural recognition, recovery, resilience and
revitalisation | Local Government Association

9.2 As the work progresses this group might undertake
interviews with key stakeholders but as the primary
purpose is to identify potential options it would be at
the stage of choosing options that such discussions
would be most useful.

10. Evidence Sources
74


https://www.local.gov.uk/rural-recognition-recovery-resilience-and-revitalisation
https://www.local.gov.uk/rural-recognition-recovery-resilience-and-revitalisation

10.1 Independent research articles and papers
10.2 Data provided by RCC

11. Witnhesses

11.1 This will be considered once the desk based work is
nearing completion.

12. Other Considerations

12.1 None at this stage.

75



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12¢g

SEND Group:

Scoping Meeting with Strategic Director of Children and

Families

15 July 2022

Attendees

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Councillor Ainsley

Councillor P Browne

Councillor Payne

Dawn Godfrey, Strategic Director Children & Families
Jane Narey, Scrutiny Officer

Apologies

6)
7)
8)

Councillor Baines
Councillor Begy
Councillor Webb

The SEND Service currently had 283 children with
Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP).

20 children were currently being assessed for a EHCP.
Age group 0-25 years though work with Adult Services
began when the young person turned 19 years of age.
Children with physical or health needs only accounted for a
small number of SEND children.

The biggest group of children were those with autism or
social, emotional and mental health (SEMH) needs. This
group was increasing as an effect of the pandemic and
lockdown.

Rutland has no special schools.

Engagement work with SEND parents continued and was
being well received. Feedback from parents was very
positive.

77



The Director confirmed that Council reserves were not
funding the SEND deficit.

SEND service will have big changes over the next 12-18
months including:

o Proposed SEND Green Paper
o New OfSTED SEND inspection framework
o RCC’s Delivering Better Value Programme

The SEND Peer Review will be held on the 215t and 22
September 2022.

Key lines of enquiry will be the service’s readiness for
changes outlined in the Green Paper and its readiness for
the new OfSTED SEND inspection framework.

The Director would like SOSC to be involved in the SEND
Peer Review, possibly shadowing the process and
feedback when any meeting was held with SEND parents.
Compilation of the timetable for the 2-day review would
begin on the 15t August 2022.

ACTION
a) SEND Group to decide if they would like to be involved in

the SEND Peer Review or wait until 2023 when the new
SEND guidance had been finalised and implemented.

78


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-and-ap-green-paper-responding-to-the-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/ofsted-and-cqc-launch-consultation-for-new-inspection-provision-framework-for-children-and-young-people-with-send

Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

A. Aims & Objectives: All Members, officers and residents in Rutland to understand the role of scrutiny and what it aims to achieve

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

6/

1.

O&S has a clearly defined
and valued role in the
Council’s improvement
and governance
arrangements and
includes prioritising to
ensure that the scrutiny
function concentrates on
delivering work that is of
genuine value and
relevance to the work of
the wider authority

Establish engagement
dialogue between scrutiny
lead with Cabinet portfolio
holders and senior council
officers

e Quarterly meetings
with relevant
officers and
Cabinet members

Create comms plan and
public user guide and
publicity of O&S meetings
via to various comms
channel

What does this look
like?

e Publicise
committee
meetings via
Council comms
and partner
channels

e Create channel
mechanism to
update and
feedback to
residents on
activity, outcomes
etc.

¢ Publicise one-off
scrutiny review and
challenge sessions

e Publicise scrutiny

€T Wwal| epuaby



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

A. Aims & Objectives: All Members, officers and residents in Rutland to understand the role of scrutiny and what it aims to achieve

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

08

reports via social
media channels —
both comms and
Members

e Build a high-level
one-page summary
template for
committee meeting
activities i.e. topic
discussed, KLE'’s
actions/recs to
inform residents.

e Members also to
create interest via
their social media
feeds such as
videos

e Comms support to
help resident
engagement better
with scrutiny —
(options)

Create separate plan for
the publication of the
Committees Work

Scrutiny to get involved

e Use the 1-2-1 with




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

A. Aims & Objectives: All Members, officers and residents in Rutland to understand the role of scrutiny and what it aims to achieve

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery RAG | Comments

earlier in policy
development and pre-
decision scrutiny

Cabinet Member
and officers to
raise this as an
item of discussion

18

2. O&S Members have the

training and development
opportunities they need to
undertake their roles
effectively

Establish an annual
training package for
Scrutiny Members to aid
them with developing key
skills required to fulfil their
roles

Include internal training
options where possible
such as briefing sessions
for finance and audit, risk
management,
performance,

Developing better
understanding of financial
and policy context

Members’ understanding
of the range of service
areas within the portfolio

Put likely briefing
dates in diary.
Need to undertake
a skills audit of
Scrutiny members
to understand
training needs and
develop
programme.
Create training
need matrix.
Working with CfPS
to ensure Members
development.
Members induction
with specific
portfolio areas.
Members
undertaking site
visits where
applicable to
develop their

Target next
municipal year for
comprehensive
training
programme




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

A. Aims & Objectives: All Members, officers and residents in Rutland to understand the role of scrutiny and what it aims to achieve

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

28

Developing learning in key
areas which will help
strengthen scrutiny’s role
and impact

knowledge base.

e Source training to
help understand
Council finances
i.e. Pensions Fund,
Treasury,
Management,
Acquisitions &
Disposals, Budget
Setting, Councils
Reserves &
Outturn Monitoring,
and Risk
Management.




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

B. Meeting Administration: All scrutiny meetings to be run in a professional and highly efficient way to enable effective scrutiny to take

place

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery |RAG | Comments

€8

3. O&S meetings and

activities are well-planned,
chaired effectively and
make best use of the
resources available to it

Scrutiny chair delegating
to committee members to
take on a more active role
for the next scrutiny
meeting topic leading to
better engagement and
ownership from members
and more robust research
and evidence

Scrutiny members
to meet informally
once a month to
discuss priorities
for committee
agendas and report
development.

All papers to be shared
with Members (a week in
advance of the committee
meeting) to allow
Members sufficient time to
review the papers and
establish key lines of
enquiry for the item.

Information and
themes to be
requested at
beginning of
calendar month
before committee.
Have the
information well
before the meeting
so that they are
well prepared what
needs to be asked
and what needs to
be done.




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status _ On target but with minor issues Completed action

B. Meeting Administration: All scrutiny meetings to be run in a professional and highly efficient way to enable effective scrutiny to take
place

Objectives Priority Action Owner(s) Delivery | RAG | Comments

e Committees could
use more case
studies and open to
more community
members and
group involvement.

e Scrutinise
decisions based on
clear set of factors
e.g. finances, risk,
impact.

e Scoping out
agenda items for
committee
meetings to help
better use of time /
guestioning with
more focus and
purpose.

e Members raising
residents’ concern
at Committee
meetings.

e Balance between
officers / Members

174}




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

B. Meeting Administration: All scrutiny meetings to be run in a professional and highly efficient way to enable effective scrutiny to take

place

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

G38

given sufficient
time to present on
massive issues.

Improve focus of pre-
meets

e To have a pre-
agenda template
for discussion at
pre-meets to help
focus and perform
better at meetings.

Improve scope to include
case studies, external
organisations, hearing
from residents and or
local groups

e Applya
stakeholder
mapping within
scope of the
agenda items to
ensure that the
relevant people are
attending the
meeting.




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

C. Work Programme: Develop and deliver a coordinated work programme across all scrutiny committees which supports the council to
achieve its strategic objectives and reflects the concerns of residents

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

a8

4. 0O&S Committee develops

a work programme,
focusing on priority areas
including:

e Improvement agenda

e Delivering the
strategic plan

e Linking
performance and
budget scrutiny

Scrutiny Officer support to
assist scrutiny members
with research and analysis
on progress made over
the last year including
timetabling in service
action plans to come back
to scrutiny as part of the
work programme

Each committee
meeting to have
one area of
spotlight or
challenge.
Challenge sessions
are diarised at
beginning of
municipal year at
various intervals
(rather than just the
end)

Reduce volume of agenda
items at committee
meetings and help
address limited committee
meetings

Increase number of
one-off challenge
session to provide
coverage on issues
that warrant more

circulated out to
directorates as part of
supporting directorate

detailed

examination.
0O&S Work Plan (post ¢ Include likely
committee sign off) to be Challenge

Sessions as they
are confirmed




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status _ On target but with minor issues

Completed action

C. Work Programme: Develop and deliver a coordinated work programme across all scrutiny committees which supports the council to
achieve its strategic objectives and reflects the concerns of residents

Objectives Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

/8

forward planning.

e To programme into
O&S work plan —
review of service
action plans based
on challenge
session records.

Improving Committees
focus on issues — better
forward planning (looking
at topics earlier)

e To programme in
O&S work plan
less agenda items
to facilitate in-depth
focus on issues
which are more
thematic in nature.

e Engage SMT in
work plan setting
now before new
Committees comes
in so we have
items.

Combination of Spotlight
and Challenge Session to
facilitate in-depth focus

o Application of a
light touch spotlight
session on issue
and follow up a
more in-depth




Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

C. Work Programme: Develop and deliver a coordinated work programme across all scrutiny committees which supports the council to
achieve its strategic objectives and reflects the concerns of residents

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery |RAG | Comments

focus using
scrutiny review/
challenge session.

Raising residents’
awareness on facility to
ask questions on topics

¢ Increase level of
comms to residents
making them
aware opportunity
to ask questions on
specific topics.

88

10



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

D. Represent residents and enable their concerns to inform Council decision making and policy development

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

63

5. Promote opportunities for
resident to engage with
scrutiny meetings

Develop a comms plan
that publicises the OSC
and meetings offering
residents participation

Build comms
actions into work
plan and Action
Log e.g. committee
member to request
info before
Challenge Session.
Programme
meetings in the
community if
possible and
dependent on work
plan.

Promote council’s online
scrutiny suggestion of
topics page annually along
with the Governance
mailbox as part of the
wider scrutiny comms plan

One-off resident led
scrutiny topic (based on
resident poll as key issue)
within the community

Scrutiny chair to
consider where this
could have best
impact within their
work plan and how
residents can be

11



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

D. Represent residents and enable their concerns to inform Council decision making and policy development

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

engaged with the
session (possibly
challenge session).

Incorporate resident

committee meetings

guestions section within the

e Scrutiny Officer to
ensure that the
guestions are
received by a set
time and
programmed into
the session at
beginning or the
end.

12



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

E. Evidence gathering: Ensure a wide range of withesses are engaged, and evidence researched, to allow Scrutiny to make informed
and effective recommendations

16

Objectives Priority Action Owner(s) Delivery |RAG [[Comments
6. Council explores where Build opportunities for e Request relevant Policy
‘independent expertise’ community members and community and officers

exists in the county, taking
account of existing
networks and contacts,
and how this could be
used to assist independent
scrutiny of services.

stakeholders to give
evidence at meetings and
assist with evidence
gathering

stakeholder
contacts from
Directorates.
Promote online
Scrutiny
engagement
portals.

Consider benchmarking
with neighbouring or
similar sized authorities to
understand their approach
including inviting scrutiny
chairs from different
authorities.

Scrutiny Chair and/or
representative to be
integrated into council’s
partnership working
(thematic boards)

Brief exercise
comparing to other
authorities.
Relevant
partnership boards
and opportunities
identified.
Scrutiny Chair
and/or
representative
invited to attend as
appropriate.
Scrutiny Members
undertake site visit
(where feasible

13



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

E. Evidence gathering: Ensure a wide range of witnesses are engaged, and evidence researched, to allow Scrutiny to make informed
and effective recommendations

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

26

and relevant) as
part of developing
intelligence for
Committee meeting
agenda.

Distribution of scrutiny
agenda items amongst
scrutiny member to help
more in-depth focus of
meetings.

e Scrutiny Chair to
spread agenda
topics amongst
Members to help
sharpen the focus/
examination of the

topic.
Reviewing the Cabinet e Scrutiny members
Forward Plan to identify need a more

any controversial issues
which need scrutiny’s
attention.

investigative
approach with
Cabinet members
and officers on
these topics via 1-
2-1

o Committee to
review the
experience of the
County from a
Place wide

14



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

E. Evidence gathering: Ensure a wide range of witnesses are engaged, and evidence researched, to allow Scrutiny to make informed
and effective recommendations

Objectives

Priority

Action

Owner(s)

Delivery

RAG

Comments

perspective —
branch out beyond
the Council.

€6

15



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status Completed action

F. Scrutiny improves outcomes and drives improvement in public services

Objectives Priority Action Owner(s) Delivery |RAG [[Comments
7. Scrutiny Self Reflection on | To continue review using | e Improvement Plan
its work for 2022/23 feedback surveys and published.
capture the views of e Reviewed
Members, Co-optees, informally
partners and officer throughout the
feedback year.

G. Accountability & Culture: Nurture a culture of scrutiny and work closely with the Council’s Cabinet and Corporate Directors to
encourage their buy-in and have open and honest conversations about performance, key issues and identify where scrutiny can add

value
Objectives Priority Action Owner(s) Delivery |RAG | Comments
8. Managing disagreement — | Develop an executive and | e Capture

cultivating the relationship
between Scrutiny
Members and Executive.

scrutiny protocol which
creates an expectations
framework

expectations of
information when
requested by
committee i.e.
timely, topical etc.
Capture
expectation of
members’ focus at
meetings

9. Improving relations

Scrutiny’s relationship with

Respect on all side

16



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

g6

Cabinet and officers

whilst maintaining
critical friend
approach and
taking a
collaborative
approach ensuring
scrutiny adds
value, has
systematic focus
upon what
residents and
service users are
saying.

Scrutiny to
establish approach
to controversial
issues and
establishing
rapport for a more
open and honest
dialogue.
Developing a parity
of esteem so that
O&S function has
equal weighting to
that of Executive.

Scrutiny’s relationship with

external partner
organisations

Be honest and
upfront with partner
organisations.

17



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

96

invited to scrutiny
meetings - let them
know that scrutiny
will challenge on
what they bring to
the meetings and
what they say at
the meetings.
Buy-in from every
level of the Council
is needed for
Overview and
Scrutiny to function
fully. The culture of
O&S is key here,

and a substantial
shift needs to take
place at an
organisational
level.

10.Improving scrutiny’s

representation
11.Improving Council’s Facilitation better OSCs to

engagement with Scrutiny

transparency on agenda
issues

encourage council
services to bring
areas of concern to
the committee so
that work can be
undertaken to

18



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

/6

review and add
value to
workstreams.

e Ensuring that the
right officer is in
place to provide
response on Cross
cutting topics such
as the budget — to
provide better
accountability.

Create scope for Scrutiny
Members to participate at
boards and panel groups

e Map our relevant
partnership boards

Clarity on decision making
process and openness
from departments to share
in a timely and regular
manner

Scrutiny to request
documents such as:

e Situation reports —
prepared by the
council
departments and
by partners.

e Public health
updates - specific
reports on the
spread of the
disease and
mitigation and
suppression
measures.

19



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 2022-23

RAG Status

Completed action

e Action trackers —
service by service
and corporately.

Escalation mechanism for
risk issues to council
statutory officers, Head of
Paid Service, Monitoring
Officer, S151 Officer.

Scrutiny to red flag
where it identifies clear
risk to the Council on
issues identified within
the committee
meetings as a support
mechanism for
governance.

Scrutiny
Officer in
liaison with
0&S
Committee
Chair

86

20



Strategic Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Work Plan 2022-23

Meeting | Publication |Proposed Item Why Author
Date Date
Election of Vice-Chair Statutory
Confirmation of Co-opted Members | Statutory
" dune |1tdune o B matonof
2022 2022 "
Representation
DRAFT Improvement Plan
Annual Work Plan Statutory
(o}
LLR CCGs’ Performance Data For Info | Kate Allardyce
Only Senior
Performance
Manager
Waste and Street Cleansing Report | Strategic Director
71 July 29" June of Places/Angela
2022 2022 Culleton

Dental Services Update

Rose Lynch,
Senior
Commissioning
Manager —
Primary Care

GT Wal epusaby




Dental Services

(East)
Homelessness Evidence Panel: Report | Councillors Waller,
Scope Toseland &
Lambert
Election of New Vice-Chair Statutory
LLR Joint Health Scrutiny Statutory
Committee: appointment of new
substitute representative
Dental Services Update: Rutland Report | Rose Lynch,
Specific Senior
S Commissioning
gth 31t Mgnager -
Primary Care
September | August Dental Services
2022 2022
(East)
Improvement Plan Chair
(Following on from the scrutiny
training held on the 215 July 2022)
Scrutiny Review of Public Transport | Briefing | Councillor Waller

Service Proposals:

a) Scoping Document




b) Timescale

Economic Development Strategy,

Strategic Director

Devolution & Levelling Up of Places
a) Scoping Document
Culture Review Councillor G
Brown

a) Scoping Document

[EEY

Homelessness Evidence Panel;

Councillors Waller,

%3”‘ 5th Report Toseland &
Lambert
October October 7 . N N ——
2022 2022 Counci As_set Rewew— ow cqnt e Strategic Director
SOSC assist with the asset review? of Places
LLR CCGs’ Performance Data For Info | Kate Allardyce
17th gth Only Senior
Performance
November | November
2022 2022 . Manager
Mid-Year Performance & Corporate |Statutory | Strategic Director

Plan Progress

of Resources




Mid-Year Finance Management
Report

Statutory

Strategic Director
of Resources

Catmose Sports Leisure Contract

Strategic Director
of Places

SEND: Update Report — TBC

Councillor Webb
with Councillors
Ainsley, Baines,

8th 30th
December |November gfgxéteb% g
2022 2022
Payne.
Highways Contract — Procurement Dee Rajput
S Outputs
Scrutiny of the Budget Statutory | Strategic Director
Draft Revenue and Capital Budget of Resources
2023/24
26 18t
January January Fees and Charges 2023/24 Statutory | Strategic Director
2023 2023 of Resources

Minerals Authority Contract
Evidence Panel: Scope

Councillor Begy




Access to GP Services — Review of
Actions

Portfolio Holder for
Adult and Health

16th 8th
February |February
2023 2023
LLR CCGs’ Performance Data For Info | Kate Allardyce
9" March |15t March Only gg:}lcc))rrmance
2023 2023 M
o anager
w
20" April |12 April Purdah compliant items only
2023 2023
25" May | 17" May
2023 2023
15" June | 7" June End of Year Performance & Statutory
2023 2023 Corporate Plan Progress




End of Year Finance Management | Statutory | Strategic Director
Report of Resources
LLR CCGs’ Performance Data For Info |Kate Allardyce
Only Senior
Performance
Manager

PROPOSED ITEMS FOR ADDITION TO THE WORK PLAN — dates tbc

1)
2)
3)
4)

2

Carbon Reduction Plan

Culture Review — to be led by Councillor G Brown with Councillors Fox and Waller.

Highways and Speeding — to be led by Councillor Bool.

Parish Council Re-Charging — to be led by Councillor G Brown

East Midlands SEND Peer Review




	Agenda
	2 RECORD OF MEETING
	9 ACCESS TO NHS DENTAL SERVICES WITHIN RUTLAND
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS
	3. NHS DENTAL SERVICES: RUTLAND
	Table 1: Timelines in accordance to dental need
	4 NHS DENTAL CHARGES
	5 PRIVATE DENTISTRY
	6 IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC
	Figure 1: LLR Primary Care Dental Activity vs Minimum Thresholds
	Figure 2: Units of Dental Activity delivered in local authority areas during the pandemic
	Table 2: Proportion of Units of Dental Activity delivered in Q3 and Q4 of 2021/22 by NHS General Dental Practices across LLR
	Figure 3: Proportion of children (0-17 years) accessing NHS dentistry during the pandemic
	Figure 4: Proportion of children resident across LLR accessing NHS dentistry within 12 months
	Figure 5: Proportion of adults accessing NHS dentistry during the pandemic
	Figure 6: Proportion of adult’s resident across LLR accessing NHS dentistry within 24 months
	9. RESTORATION OF NHS DENTAL SERVICES
	Figure 7: Percentage of Children Looked After for 12 months and dental attendance
	10 NHS DENTAL SERVICES RECOVERY INITIATIVES
	11. ORAL HEALTH AND INEQUALITIES
	Figure 8: Ranking of prevalent cases per 100,000 affecting overall health and wellbeing of people living within Rutland (Global Burden of Disease)
	Figure 9: Percentage of 5 year olds with visually obvious dental decay (2018/19)
	Figure 11: Proportion with high levels of plaque present on upper front teeth
	Figure 12: Slope index of inequality in the prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in the East Midlands
	Figure 13: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland, by local authority Index of Multiple Deprivation IMD) 2019 quintiles
	Figure 14: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland, the East Midlands and England, by year
	Figure 15: Prevalence of experience of dental decay in 5-year-olds in Rutland, by middle layer super output area (MSOA)
	Figure 16: Return on investment of oral health improvement programmes for 0- 5 year olds
	Figure 17: Variation in claims for fluoride varnish applications (0-18 years) 2017/18
	Figure 18: Impact of Poor Oral Health in Children and Families
	Figure 19: Benefits of breastfeeding
	Figure 20: Oral cancer mortality rates across LLR
	13 NATIONAL DENTAL CONTRACT REFORM
	14 CONSULTATION
	15 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
	16 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	17 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS
	18 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS
	19 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
	20 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
	21 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS
	22 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
	23 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY
	24 BACKGROUND PAPERS
	25 APPENDICES
	Appendix 1: Location of dental practices (including orthodontics)
	Map 1: Location of dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland against deprivation
	Map 2: 10 mile reach of NHS dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland
	Map 3: 30 minute travel by car (rush hour) to NHS dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland
	Map 4: 30 minute travel by public transport (weekday morning) to NHS dental practices (including orthodontics) in Rutland
	Appendix 4: Midlands Secondary Care Dental Referral Trends
	Dental Epidemiology Survey
	Healthy Child Programme
	Appendix 6: Examples of tweets shared by the NHS England Communication   Team
	Primary Care Dental services in Rutland
	Slide Number 1
	Challenges in Rutland
	Water Fluoridation
	Slide Number 4
	Future Opportunities & Solutions


	12a CULTURE / ASSET REVIEW
	12e PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICE PROPOSALS
	12f ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY, DEVOLUTION & LEVELLING UP
	12g SEND GROUP
	13 SOSC IMPROVEMENT PLAN
	15 REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN AND ANNUAL WORK PLAN

